BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES 2023-2024

BLUESTEM UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 205 Butler County, Kansas

Joel R. Lovesee, Superintendent

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Kirk Emmons
Brett Jurging
Damian Korte
Jason Dohrman
Erica Long
Lori Turner
Rebecca Wolfe

Deanna Jackson Amanda Witty Calvin Rider Clerk/Business Manager Treasurer Attorney

Updated 7/17/2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

0110	LEGAL STATUS OF THE BOARD	7
0111	HOME RULE POLICY	7
0120	BOARD POWERS AND DUTIES	7
0130	OFFICERS OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)	8
0131	1 DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)	8
0132	2 VICE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)	8
0133	3 ABSENCE OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT	8
0134		8
013		8
0140	BOARD MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)	9
	1 SPECIAL MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)	
0142	2 ADJOURNED MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)	
0150	QUORUM (KSA 72-8502)	9
0160	AGENDA (KSA 75-4317 et. seq.)	9
0170	ORDER OF BUSINESS	9
0180	VOTING PROCEDURES	10
0190	EXECUTIVE SESSION (KSA 75-4317 et. seq.)	10
0200	MINUTES OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202)	
0210	COMMITTEES	
0220	BOARD VACANCIES	
0230	AMENDMENTS	
0240	INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES	
0250	BOARD MEMBER ETHICS	
0260	NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY	
0270	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION	
1000	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	
1100	SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS	
1110	DUTIES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT	
1120	RECRUITMENT OF A SUPERINTENDENT	
1130	APPOINTMENT OF A SUPERINTENDENT	
1140	STAFF DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES	
1150	EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT	16
1160	SEPARATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT	
1170	RESIGNATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT	
1180	BOARD – SUPERINTENDENT RELATIONS	
1300	DUTIES OF THE PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL	
1400	EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL	
1500	POLICY IMPLEMENTATION	
2000	PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION	
2010	MISSION STATEMENTGRADUATION REQUIREMENTS	20
2020	CORRESPONDENCE COURSES AND GRADUATION	
2022		
2023	EARLY GRADUATIONALTERNATIVE HIGH SCHOOL CREDIT FOR AT-RISK STUDENTS	ا ∠
2024	EXTENDED LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS	
2026	ON-LINE LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES	
ZUZ1	UN-LINE LEARNING UPPURTUNITIES	∠∠

2028	FINAL EXAMINATIONS	
2040	PERFORMANCE BASED CREDITS	23
2050	GRADING POLICY	24
2060	ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE AWARDS	24
2070	PROGRESS REPORTS	24
2080	CLASS ASSIGNMENT OF ELEMENTARY/JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS	24
2090	FIELD TRIPS	24
2092	MOTION PICTURES - USE IN THE CLASSROOM	24
2100	RELIGION IN THE CURRICULUM	25
2105	RELIGIOUS OBJECTIONS TO ACTIVITIES	25
2110	HUMAN SEXUALITY / AIDS	26
2120	LIBRARY SELECTION POLICY	26
2130	GUIDANCE AND COUNSELING PROGRAM	
2140	ACCESS TO DIGITAL MEDIA (Acceptable Use Policy – AUP)	30
3100	POSITIONS	
3110	EVALUATION CRITERIA	33
3120	TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS	33
3125	INCENTIVE AND RETENTION BONUS	39
3130	PROBATION	
3140	NON-SCHOOL EMPLOYMENT AND TUTORING	33
3145	FACULTY OWNED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	34
3150	GIFTS	
3160	EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	34
3170	MEETINGS	34
3180	PROFESSIONAL DRESS	34
3210	KEYS	
3220	SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS	35
3230	PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS	35
3240	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	
3270	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT AND NON-DISCRIMINATION	36
3280	DRUG PREVENTION POLICY	
3290	SEXUAL / RACIAL HARASSMENT POLICY	37
3295	EMPLOYEE BEHAVIOR CODE	39
5000	PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION	43
5010	ADMISSION OF STUDENTS	43
5020	COMPULSORY SCHOOL LAW	46
5021	STUDENT ATTENDANCE	
5022	STUDENT ATTENDANCE CHECK	
5023	RELEASE OF STUDENT DURING SCHOOL DAY	46
5024	ELECTRONIC DEVICES	46
5050	CONTROL AND GUIDANCE OF STUDENTS / DISCIPLINE	46
5055	EMERGENCY SAFETY INTERVENTIONS	47
5101	BLUESTEM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY	49
5102	BLUESTEM MIDDLE SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY	49
5103	BLUESTEM HIGH SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY	
5104	TRANSPORTATION DISCIPLINE POLICY	49
5110	IN-SCHOOL SUSPENSION	49
5120	SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF STUDENTS	49
5125	LOCKERS	
5130	DRESS CODE	
5150	DEMONSTRATIONS	50

5155	SEARCHES	
5160	INTERROGATION AND INVESTIGATIONS CONDUCTED IN SCHOOL	53
5170	CHILD ABUSE	55
5180	DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY	56
5190	DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINTS	56
5220	ADVERTISING	57
5230	TELEPHONE USE	57
5240	PAYMENT OF PROJECTS	57
5250	STUDENT INSURANCE PROGRAM	57
5260	CORPORAL PUNISHMENT	57
5265	BULLYING	58
5270	SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY	58
5275	RACIAL HARASSMENT POLICY	59
5300	FAMILY RIGHTS AND PRIVACY	60
5310	WEAPONS	63
6000	FISCAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	65
6010	INVESTMENT OF FUNDS	65
6020	BIDS AND QUOTATIONS REQUIREMENTS	65
6030	LOCAL PURCHASING	65
6040	PAYMENT PROCEDURE	65
6050	PURCHASING	
6051	USE OF CREDIT CARDS	66
6060	FEES, PAYMENTS AND RENTALS	66
6070	GIFTS AND BEQUESTS	66
6080	SALE OF EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	66
6090	BONDED EMPLOYEES	67
6100	INVENTORIES	
6110	MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT	67
6400	ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF	67
6410		
6420	PRINCIPALS' AND ADMINISTRATORS' CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS	67
6600	CONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	67
7000	FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM	70
7010	CLOSED LUNCH	70
7020	FREE OR REDUCED LUNCH/BREAKFAST	70
7030) MILK PROGRAM	70
7100	TRANSPORTATION	70
7110		
7120	PERMITTED PASSENGERS	71
7130	PAYMENT OF MILEAGE	72
7140	LEASE OR LOAN OF SCHOOL VEHICLES	72
7200	HEALTH SERVICES	72
7210		
7220		
7230	STUDENTS/EMPLOYEES WITH (AIDS) HTLV - III INFECTION	73
7235	5 CHRONIC HEAD LICE	76
7240	PLAYGROUND SUPERVISION	76
7250	HIPAA POLICY	76
7300		76
7310		
	SAFETY & SECURITY	

7330	EMERGENCY SITUATIONS/DRILLS	77
7400	PRINTING AND DUPLICATING	77
8000	PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM	79
8005	USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY BY OUTSIDE GROUPS	79
8010	STUDENT USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES	80
8020	EQUAL ACCESS POLICY	80
8025	FAMILY NIGHT	81
8030	TOBACCO PRODUCTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS	
8040	ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS AND MONEY	81
8045	SCHOOL-BUSINESS-COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS & RELATED ADVERTIS	ING &
SIGNA		82
8050	HANDLING OF COMPLAINTS	82
8060	OPEN RECORDS	
8070	SCHOOL SITE COUNCILS	83
8080	SCHOOL VISITORS	
8090	SCHOOL VOLUNTEERS	83

BOARD OF EDUCATION 0100 – 0999

0110	Legal Status of the Board
0111	Home Rule Policy
0120	Board Powers and Duties
0130	Officers of the Board (KSA 72-8202a)
	0131 Duties of the President of the Board (KSA 72-8202a)
	0132 Vice President of the Board (KSA 72-8202a)
	0133 Absence of President and Vice President
	0134 Duties of the Clerk (KSA 72-8202a; 10-1114)
	0135 Duties of the Treasurer (KSA 72-8202; 8282;10-1115)
0140	Board Meetings (KSA 72-8205)
	0141 Special Meetings (KSA 72-8205)
	0142 Adjourned Meetings (KSA 72-8205)
0150	Quorum (KSA 72-8502)
0160	Agenda (KSA 72-4317 <u>et. seq.</u>)
0170	Order of Business
0180	Voting Procedures
0190	Executive Session (KSA 75-4317 et. seq.)
0200	Minutes of the Board (KSA 72-8202)
0210	Committees
0220	Board Vacancies
0230	Amendments
0240	Individual Board Member Responsibilities
0250	Board Member Ethics
0260	Non-Discrimination Policy
0270	Public Participation

0110 LEGAL STATUS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Education retains full legislative and judicial authority over the schools, in accordance with the school laws and the expressed will of the electorate; but delegates all executive, supervisory and instructional authority of its employees as hereinafter specified. Legislative service under the law implies the power and obligation to contract for services and materials, the power to inspect, and the power to veto acts of any or all employees when such rights are deemed contrary to the legal rights or obligations of the District or inconsistent with established Board Policies.

0111 HOME RULE POLICY

The Board shall have authority to conduct District business without specific statutory delegation. The Board may transact all School District business and adopt policies the Board deems appropriate to perform its constitutional duty to maintain, develop and operate local public schools.

0120 BOARD POWERS AND DUTIES

The following are some of the functions of the Board of Education:

- 1. To select a Superintendent, who shall act as the Administrative Officer of the Board, and who shall advise with and carry out the policies of the Board.
- 2. To provide for the levy of taxes in order that funds may be available for the operation of its schools.
- 3. To adopt and administer a school budget to the end that the best possible physical and educational conditions may be provided.
- 4. To determine and interpret all the educational needs of the community, through the help of its educational staff.
- 5. To develop policies in accordance with the law which will satisfy the needs of the community and the wishes of the people.
- 6. To approve means whereby the policies may be efficiently executed.
- 7. To study improved educational practices and methods, to assist in presenting explanations of desirable ones of the school, and to evaluate the procedures in terms of the value rendered to the pupils and to the community.
- 8. To assume responsibility, along with the professional staff, for keeping the people of the District informed concerning the purposes, values, achievements, requirements and financial conditions of the District.
- 9. To perform all other duties required by the Law of Boards of Education of Kansas.

0130 OFFICERS OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)

The officers of the Board of Education are a President and a Vice President. These officers are elected by the Board of Education from its membership at its regular meeting on the second Monday of July each year. The term of office is for a one year period, or until their successors are elected and qualified.

0131 DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)

The President of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board, shall appoint any special committees, and shall sign all warrants ordered by the Board to be drawn upon funds of the School District.

0132 VICE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202A)

The Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President when the latter is not able to be present for the meeting.

0133 ABSENCE OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT

In the absence or inability to act of both the President or Vice President, the remaining members shall select a member to act in that capacity.

0134 DUTIES OF THE CLERK (KSA 72-8202A; 10-1114)

The Clerk of the Board shall be present at all meetings of the Board to keep an accurate journal of its proceedings and to have the care and custody of the records, books and documents of the Board. The Clerk shall countersign all warrants drawn upon the Treasurer by order of the Board, keep an accurate account of all moneys paid to the Treasurer on account of said Board and all moneys paid or orders drawn on the Treasurer by order of said Board, and prepare and publish an annual report showing the following: (1) the moneys received by the Treasurer since the last report and from what source received; (2) the moneys paid out and for what; (3) the balance of the General Fund in the hands of the Treasurer; (4) the number, date and amount of any bond issued by said Board; and (5) the Clerk shall perform such other duties as the Board or its committees shall require.

0135 DUTIES OF THE TREASURER (KSA 72-8202; 8282; 10-1115)

It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to deposit all money belonging to the Board of Education in a responsible bank, to be designated by the Board of Education, in the name of such Treasurer as such officer. Before making such deposits, the Board shall take from such a bank good and sufficient bond in a sum to be designated by the Board of Education, conditioned that

such deposits shall be promptly paid on the check of draft of such Treasurer. The Treasurer shall attend meetings of the Board when required to do so; shall prepare and submit in writing a monthly report of the finances of said Board; and shall pay school moneys only upon a warrant signed by the President, or in his/her absence by the Vice President, and countersigned by the Clerk.

0140 BOARD MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)

Regular meetings of the Board shall be set at the July Board meeting. In general, the regular meetings will be on the second Monday of the month at 7:00 p.m. The dates and times of the regular Board meetings shall be published after enacted at the July meeting.

0141 SPECIAL MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President of the Board or by joint action of any three members thereof. Written notices, stating the time and place of any special meeting and the purpose for which called, shall be issued two days before such meeting, unless waived by each given Board member. No business other than that stated in the notice shall be transacted at such meetings. Special meetings are open to the public.

0142 ADJOURNED MEETINGS (KSA 72-8205)

Adjourned meetings, regular or special, may be held at such time and place as the Board may determine in the motion to adjourn.

0150 QUORUM (KSA 72-8502)

A majority of the whole Board of Education then in office shall be necessary at all meetings to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

0160 AGENDA (KSA 75-4317 et. seq.)

The Board shall adopt an agenda at the beginning of each meeting. Prior to each meeting, the Superintendent shall distribute to each Board member appropriate material and written matter concerning items on the agenda. The President may change the order of the agenda.

0170 ORDER OF BUSINESS

The order of business at regular meetings shall generally be as follows: Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, Approval of Agenda, Information Items, Discussion Items, Action Items and Adjournment.

0180 VOTING PROCEDURES

The Board shall take action by way of motions. No motion may be acted upon until it has been duly seconded by a member of the Board. The vote on all motions shall be by "yes" and "no" and will be taken by a show of hands. Following each vote, the president shall announce that the motion carried or failed by a vote of _____ affirmative votes to _____ negative votes. The Minutes shall indicate whether a motion passed or failed. Each Board member shall have the privilege of explaining for the record any vote, be it affirmative, negative or abstaining.

Any abstaining vote shall be counted as a "no" vote.

Any member may declare a conflict of interest and decline to vote on a particular issue. In this event, the member's vote shall not be counted. The Minutes will reflect the fact a particular member has declared a conflict of interest.

0190 EXECUTIVE SESSION (KSA 75-4317 et. seq.)

The Board may go into Executive Session upon a carried motion to do so after stating the reason and stating the time for reconvening to regular session. Reasons for entering into Executive Session are as follows: personnel matters for non-elected personnel; consultation with an attorney; employee negotiations; confidential data relating to financial affairs of corporations, partnerships, trusts and individual proprietorships; matters relating to a person, such as a student, except when that person has a right to a public hearing; and discussions relating to the acquisition of real property. The Board may specify who will be included in the Executive Session. No official action may be taken in Executive Session.

0200 MINUTES OF THE BOARD (KSA 72-8202)

Complete and accurate Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of the Board of Education. Minutes shall be kept in an official record book designated for that purpose. Such Minutes shall constitute the official proceedings and shall be open to public inspection. A written copy of proceedings shall be sent to each Board member prior to the next regular meeting.

0210 COMMITTEES

The Board shall have no standing committees. Temporary committees may be appointed by the President for specific tasks and such committees shall make full and complete reports to the Board. Committee action shall be advisory and not executive. The Superintendent shall be a member ex-officio of all such committees.

0220 BOARD VACANCIES

Vacancies which may occur on the Board shall be filled in a manner prescribed by the laws of the State of Kansas.

0230 AMENDMENTS

Board By-Laws may be amended or repealed by a majority vote of the Board at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose.

0240 INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Education acts as a whole in the discharge of its duties. No individual member has any legal authority except as he/she exercises it as a member of the Board; the individual has no more authority over school policies or personnel than any other citizen. The individual member has no legal or moral right to speak for the Board unless specifically authorized to do so by action of the Board.

0250 BOARD MEMBER ETHICS

As a member of my local Board, I will strive to improve public education, and to that end I will:

Attend all regularly scheduled Board meetings insofar as possible and become informed concerning the issues to be considered at those meetings;

Recognize that I should endeavor to make policy decisions only after full discussion at publicly held Board meetings;

Render all decisions based on the available facts and my independent judgment, and refuse to surrender that judgment to individuals or special interest groups;

Encourage the free expression of opinion by all Board members, and seek systematic communications between the Board and students, District staff, and all elements of the community;

Work with other Board members to establish effective Board Policies and to delegate authority for the administration of the schools to the Superintendent;

Communicate to other Board members and the Superintendent expressions of public reaction to Board Policies and school programs;

Inform myself about current educational issues by individual study and through participation in programs providing needed information, such as those sponsored by my state and national school boards associations.

Support the employment of those persons best qualified to serve as District staff and insist on a regular impartial evaluation of all staff;

Avoid being placed in a position of conflict of interest and refrain from using my Board position for personal or partisan gain;

Take no private action that will compromise the Board or the administration and respect the confidentiality of information that is privileged under applicable law; and

Remember always that the first and greatest concern must be the educational welfare of the students attending the public schools.

0260 NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

It is the policy of Bluestem Unified School District 205 to follow equal opportunity employment practices. The Board will make every attempt to hire its employees on the basis of ability and the needs of the District.

The Board does not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, age, disability, sex or national origin of any applicant in any of its educational programs or activities.

In further compliance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, there shall be no discrimination on the basis of sex with regard to student admission to or participation in any educational program or activity of the District except as specifically provided in said Title IX.

The Board of Education of Bluestem U.S.D. 205 designates the Superintendent of Schools to coordinate its efforts to comply with and carry out its responsibilities under Title IX. Any complaint to be considered substantive must be in writing, stating all particulars and must be signed by the complainant. Any such complaint will be investigated by the Superintendent of Schools and a written report issued within a reasonable time indicating the facts of the situation which initiated the complaint. Any such report or ruling is subject to review by the Board of Education of Bluestem U.S.D. 205.

0270 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The general public shall be invited to attend all Board meetings, except Executive Sessions.

At each regular meeting of the Board, an open forum shall be held so that citizens may participate in the meeting. The open forum shall normally be no more than 20 minutes in length. During the open forum, any person may address the Board with respect to District affairs respecting these guidelines:

Who May Speak?

• Any patron – speaking for yourself or representing a group

When is Public Input Accepted?

- At all regular Board of Education meetings
- During the public input time on the agenda

Before You Speak:

• Fill out a "Request to Speak" form prior to the meeting and give it to the Board Clerk.

Procedure:

• The Board President will announce the patron input time and, in turn, call the names of all who have submitted "Request to Speak" forms.

- When your name is called, stand to speak. Relax. The Board is happy to hear from you!
- Give your name and address.
- Make your remarks, trying to be brief and to the point.
- Answer any questions the Board directs to you. Comments or questions from Board members are not intended to engage the speaker in debate or dialogue.
- Comments will not be made a part of the Official Minutes of the Board meeting.

Limitations:

- Please limit your remarks to five minutes.
- To protect the privacy rights of non-elected personnel and students, the Board shall not hear personal complaints concerning any students, employee or groups of employees of the School District or any person connected with the School District during open session. All personnel matters are referred to administration who then reports to the Board in Executive Session.
- The Board President will stop any speaker who does not follow guidelines or use good taste and judgment.
- The Board President may ask groups with the same interest to appoint a spokesperson to deliver the group's message.
- Persons who prefer to submit written remarks may do so on the "Request to Speak" form. Your remarks will be distributed to all Board members.

Board Response:

- In most cases, the Board will not respond to your remarks during the meeting.
 Later it may gather more information and/or pursue your issue in a variety of ways.
- If you have asked a question or requested an inquiry, the District may send you a response within a week or two.
- If you do not receive a follow-up letter, you can assume your remarks have been heard and placed on file for review.

Any patrons wishing to suggest an agenda item shall first notify the Superintendent at least seven calendar days prior to the next regular meeting and state the reason(s) for the request. The Superintendent shall determine whether said request can be resolved by the staff without appearance of the patron before the Board. If not, the Superintendent shall place the patron's request on the Agenda of the next regular Board meeting.

ADMINISTRATION 1000 – 1999

1000 1100		d Objectives endent of Schools
	1110	Duties of the Superintendent
	1120	Recruitment of a Superintendent
	1130	Appointment of a Superintendent
	1140	Staff Development Opportunities
	1150	Evaluation of the Superintendent
	1160	Separation of the Superintendent
	1170	Resignation of the Superintendent
	1180	Board – Superintendent Relations
1300	Duties of	Principals and other administrative personnel
1400		on of Principals and other administrative personnel
1500	Policy Im	plementation

1000 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The goal of school administration is to create an environment in which students can learn more effectively. All administrative duties and functions should be evaluated relative to the contributions made to improve instruction, increase student learning, and develop worthwhile citizens. The administration should select staff who will develop student abilities.

The Superintendent should possess leadership qualities which motivate all staff members to improve the educational program and attain the Board's goals and objectives. The Superintendent, with the Board's direction, shall mobilize and coordinate all available resources to develop an educational program designed to stimulate the best effort in all students.

1100 SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

The Superintendent shall be the chief administrative head of the school system and shall have, under the direction of the Board, general supervision of all the schools. The Superintendent is responsible for management of the schools under Board Policies and is accountable to the Board.

The Superintendent may delegate to other school personnel the exercise of any powers and the discharge of any duties imposed upon the Superintendent by these Policies or by the Board. The delegation of power or duty, however, shall not relieve the Superintendent of responsibility for the action taken under such delegation.

1110 DUTIES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

The responsibilities of the Superintendent shall be:

- To serve as administrative head of the District;
- To keep the Board informed on the progress and condition of the schools;
- To administer the development and maintenance of an educational program designed to meet the community's needs, to study recent educational developments and to recommend changes in programs;
- To carry out the Board's Policies and rules;
- To monitor educational policies and to recommend needed changes to the Board;
- To recommend positions required to provide adequate personnel for the operation of education programs;
- To nominate for appointment, assignment, transfer or termination and to define the duties of all personnel, subject to approval of the Board;

- To supervise the preparation of the annual budget and to recommend it to the Board for consideration:
- To advise and recommend in business administration matters;
- To study the schools' needs and to keep the public informed concerning those needs; and
- To assure that the District finances are properly managed.

1120 RECRUITMENT OF A SUPERINTENDENT

The Superintendent search presents the Board with an opportunity to recruit individuals who will implement the Board's goals. The Board shall recruit candidates who can best accomplish this objective. The Board shall consider only candidates who meet both state and local qualifications and who display the ability to successfully carry out the Superintendent's duties.

The Board may solicit applications from qualified members of the staff and may list the vacancy with placement offices.

Applications for the position of Superintendent shall be screened by a professional committee selected by the Board. Finalists' districts should be visited by persons designated by the Board. Selected candidates shall be interviewed by the Board.

1130 APPOINTMENT OF A SUPERINTENDENT

The Board may offer a contract not to exceed three years in length. The Superintendent's contract shall be considered for renewal on or before the statutory date for non-renewal.

1140 STAFF DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES

The Superintendent shall keep updated on new educational practices by: study, visiting other districts, attending educational conferences and other means approved by the Board.

1150 EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

The Board shall evaluate the Superintendent in accordance with the minimum statutory requirements for the first four years of employment and annually thereafter, using the appraisal instrument. The appraisal instrument may be used by the Superintendent as a self-evaluation instrument prior to this evaluation by the Board.

Each individual Board member shall complete and submit appraisal forms to the Board President. The President shall formulate a summary of the individual responses and allow time for necessary discussion. The summary shall use the same format as the individual Board member's appraisal form. The Board President shall sign the summary as the Board's agent and as the evaluator.

The Board shall review the summary with the Superintendent in an Executive Session. If written comments are needed, the President or the Superintendent may seek additional clarification from individual Board member(s).

The Superintendent's Evaluation shall be confidential and be made available only to the Board, Superintendent and others as provided by law.

The evaluation instrument shall be on file at the District Office with the Clerk.

The evaluation of the Superintendent by the Board shall accomplish the following:

- Provide an opportunity for the Board and Superintendent to periodically meet and discuss the Superintendent's performance and the District's management;
- Review, clarify and discuss the immediate and long-term goals for the District and the Superintendent;
- Establish, clarify and discuss the major functions, responsibilities and roles of the Superintendent and the Board;
- Encourage a good working relationship between the Board and the Superintendent;
- Encourage and recognize good administrative performance;
- Improve the Superintendent's leadership performance and management of the District by suggesting areas of responsibility and operating techniques that may be strengthened; and
- Establish reasonable standards for continued employment of the Superintendent.

1160 SEPARATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

The Board may elect not to renew the Superintendent's contract.

1170 RESIGNATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

The Superintendent may submit a resignation to the Board President at a regular or special meeting. The Board will consider the acceptance of the resignation in light of the needs of the District.

1180 BOARD - SUPERINTENDENT RELATIONS

The Board delegates to the Superintendent all administrative duties. While the Board reserves to itself the ultimate decision in all matters concerning policy or expenditures of funds, it will normally proceed in those areas only after receiving recommendation from the Superintendent.

1300 DUTIES OF THE PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

The duties of the Principals and other administrative personnel shall be:

- To establish and implement clear instructional goals and specific achievement objectives for the schools;
- To plan, implement and evaluate instructional programs, including learning objectives and instructional strategies for the schools;
- To provide a purposeful school environment conducive to learning;
- To develop and implement administrative procedures consistent with federal law, state school law, state board of education and local School Board Policy;
- To perform delegated management duties related to school fiscal operations, inventories, school plant facilities and equipment and keep records within established guidelines;
- To conduct an effective school program of utilization, induction and evaluation of teachers and staff members;
- To develop and utilize communication channels within the community;
- To demonstrate respect for and work supportively with teachers and staff; and
- To develop and establish an effective student management program.

1400 EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

Administrative personnel shall be evaluated in writing by the superintendent in accordance with the minimum statutory requirements for the first four years of employment and at least annually thereafter. Administrative personnel files and evaluations shall be available only to the board, the appropriate administrator, the superintendent and others authorized by law.

1500 POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

Failure of any administrative employee to implement Board Policies may result in suspension, demotion, probation, non-renewal or termination of employment in accordance with procedures set forth in these Policies and Rules.

INSTRUCTION

2000 – 2999

2000	Philosophy of Education
2010	Mission Statement
2020	Graduation Requirements
2022	Correspondence Courses and Graduation
2023	Early Graduation
2024	Alternative High School Credit for At-Risk Students
2025	Dual Credit for High School Students
2026	Extended Learning Opportunities for Students
2027	On-Line Learning Opportunities
2028	Final Examinations
2040	Performance Based Credits
2050	Grading Policy
2060	Academic Excellence Awards
2070	Progress Reports
2080	Class Assignment of Elementary/Middle School Students
2090	Field Trips
2092	Motion Pictures – Use in the Classroom
2100	Religion in the Curriculum
2105	Religious Objections to Activities
2110	Human Sexuality/AIDS
2120	Library Selection Policy
2130	Guidance and Counseling Program
2140	Acceptable Use Policy (Digital Media)

2000 PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION

Realizing that individuals live in a complex society, the Board is hopeful that each student, in addition to the more academic preparations provided by the public schools, will have the opportunity for basic training in desirable moral and ethical values in preparation for assuming a useful role in society.

Twenty-first century citizenship requires all students be proficient in the basic skills so that continuous lifetime learning is easily accessible by all. Additionally, citizenship in the new "digital age" requires that our schools integrate communication, collaboration and information analysis skills into the curriculum. The Board will attempt to balance its programs to provide for the varied needs and interests of the students in its schools. The Board accepts the premise that the student is the center of the school curriculum and that the instruction program should be tailored to fit a child-centered program of education.

The Board views the educational process as a comprehensive program which must be undertaken in cooperation with other institutions of our society and will seek to establish and maintain strong ties with parents and community programs.

To this end, the Board subscribes to the following:

- 1. A rigorous academic program will assist students (based upon their individual needs, interests and abilities) to grow intellectually and to think rationally.
- 2. Each student will be provided opportunities to practice using knowledge and skills for perpetuating and improving a democratic society, and for developing a respect for the rights, opinions and values of others so that the student may live as a responsible, mature, functional member of the community.
- 3. The twofold purpose of physical fitness is to assist the development of healthy minds and bodies and to provide experience in activities which will provide beneficial personal wellness habits and leisure time activities as adults.
- 4. All programs will provide students with the skills necessary to successfully participate in post-secondary educational experiences, regardless of the student's near-term occupational plans.
- 5. The instructional program will attempt to assist students in understanding the various traditions and customs of other cultures.

2010 MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the schools of Bluestem USD 205 is to provide a curriculum and environment which will enable all students to master clearly-defined educational goals, in order that each student be prepared for responsible citizenship in an everchanging society.

2020 GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Twenty-four (24) units of high school credit are required for graduation. See the high school handbook for a more detailed listing. The required units and subjects are:

Language Arts 4 units
Social Studies 3 units
Fine Arts 1 unit
Math 3 units
Natural Science 3 units
Physical Education/Health 1 unit
IPS ½ unit
Electives 8 ½ units

2022 CORRESPONDENCE COURSES AND GRADUATION

Should a student attend Bluestem High School four years and not earn sufficient credits for graduation, and should he/she take correspondence, online or summer courses from another school to complete the graduation requirements, a diploma may be issued to that student by Bluestem U.S.D. 205 upon presentation of proof of the earning of the necessary requirements.

Any cases not covered by the stated policies shall be treated individually by referral to the Superintendent and administrative personnel concerned and a solution reached for them.

2023 EARLY GRADUATION

A student may graduate under the following provisions:

- 1. The student has completed all graduation requirements as set forth by Bluestem U.S.D. 205 and the Kansas State Department of Education.
- 2. The student has the option to attend commencement exercises or receive the diploma by mail. In either case, the diploma will be issued on or after the formal commencement date.
- 3. Grades will be tabulated for rank in class and the student can qualify for valedictorian or salutatorian.
- 4. Approval forms must be completed 60 (sixty) school days prior to the end of the semester the student plans early graduation.

2024 ALTERNATIVE HIGH SCHOOL CREDIT FOR AT-RISK STUDENTS

Bluestem U.S.D. 205 may provide instructional programming for identified At Risk students. Students enrolled will be expected to meet all course requirements, counseling sessions, and other criteria as set forth by the student improvement team. Credit earned will be counted toward graduation requirements.

2025 DUAL (CONCURRENT) CREDIT FOR HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS

Bluestem High School students in grades 10, 11 and 12 attending college classes during the school year (or for summer school credit) will receive both college credit and high school credit. The student and parent(s) / guardian(s) will be informed of this policy upon enrollment. At enrollment, the student and parent(s) / guardian(s) will sign a document identifying whether the student will take any courses, not required for graduation, for a letter grade (used for calculating GPA and class rank), or as a pass / fail credit (not used in GPA or class rank calculations). Any course required for graduation must be taken for a letter grade.

2026 EXTENDED LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS

The Board may require extended learning opportunities for students not meeting minimum academic requirements as defined by the Board. Students may be assigned to extended academic sessions including, but not limited to:

- Before or after regular school hours;
- Saturday school; or
- Summer sessions.

Regulations necessary to govern extended academic sessions shall be recommended by the Superintendent for Board approval. Truancy laws, suspension and expulsion policies and law, and all appropriate portions of the student behavior code shall apply during extended academic sessions.

2027 ON-LINE LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES

Application

Students may apply for permission to enroll in an on-line course for credit. Applications for the next academic term shall be submitted to the Principal no later than 45 calendar days before the next academic term begins. The student and student's parents shall be informed of the administrator's decision in writing no later than 15 calendar days before the start of the next academic term.

Students may not enroll in an on-line course as an alternative to any course offered by the high school, except as:

- An attempt to earn credit for a class already attempted but failed by the student:
- To reasonably accommodate a student wishing to accelerate high school graduation and proceed with further post secondary education or training;
- Or to resolve a significant scheduling conflict.

Guidelines

The following guidelines shall be used by the administration:

- 1. Only approved courses shall be posted on student transcripts.
- 2. Approval of any course shall be based upon the course content and rigor, its length, scope, and its method of assessing knowledge acquired by the student, the qualifications of the instructor and other appropriate factors.
- 3. Enrollment in an on-line course will be allowed only if an appropriately certified or licensed teacher supervises the student's participation in the course either in-person or on-line.
- 4. Suspended or expelled students may also apply for permission to enroll in online course work.
- 5. The cost of on-line courses shall be borne by the student unless otherwise approved by the Superintendent.

Other Regulations or Guidelines

Approval by the administration shall also be based on Kansas State Department of Education regulations and/or guidelines in effect at the time the student request is made.

2028 FINAL EXAMINATIONS

Final examinations may be given at the end of each semester in every course in grades 7-12 with approval of the building principal. The mid-term and final examinations shall count for no more than 20% (twenty percent) of a student's mid-term and final grade.

Teachers are encouraged to develop rigorous examinations that assess student retention of course concepts and that provide an opportunity for the student to demonstrate the ability to apply the learning to real-world examples.

2040 PERFORMANCE BASED CREDITS

A student may earn credits towards high school graduation by demonstrating mastery of the course outcomes. The standards for designing and passing the performance instrument shall be set sufficiently high to ensure credits earned by such means shall be equivalent to the learning accomplished by students completing the full course.

Credit for such classes shall be awarded to the student if they score 3.5 or above on the completed performance assessment. It will not be the responsibility of the school or the instructor to provide instructional and/or review time for the student. However, the outcomes for the course will be made available.

2050 GRADING POLICY

BJSHS: Grades will be indicated by A, B, C, D, and F. An A is 3.5-4.0; a B is from 3.0-3.44; a C is from 2.5-2.94; a D is from 2.0-2.44; and an F is 1 or below.

BES: Outcomes Based Grading will be identified as 4,3,2,1,0. A 4 is Distinguished; a 3 is Proficient; a 2 is Approaching; a 1 is Developing; and a 0 is No Evidence.

2060 ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE AWARDS

Students excelling academically shall be appropriately recognized for their performance at the building level. Building Principals shall plan for appropriate recognition of academic excellence through the provision of awards and programs that recognize the achievements of high performing students and students showing significant improvement in academic skills.

2070 PROGRESS REPORTS

Pupil progress reports are sent to the parents at the end of each nine-week period of school, both at the elementary and the secondary levels.

These reports to parents are supplemented in several other ways and by several other means – online grade access, parent/teacher conferences, telephone calls, home visitation, letters or informal notes, or by means of forms prepared for this purpose. Unsatisfactory work is reported as the need arises, without waiting for the end of the nine-week reporting period.

2080 CLASS ASSIGNMENT OF ELEMENTARY/JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS

Elementary students will be assigned to a home room teacher after enrollment. Elementary students will be enrolled in classes with every effort made to keep classes balanced.

Middle school students will have individualized schedules. Middle school students will be enrolled in classes with every effort made to keep classes balanced.

2090 FIELD TRIPS

Field trips and excursions are encouraged when a reasonable educational objective can be established.

The teacher shall notify the Principal of each trip planned and of the resources needed in advance of the trip. Each building Principal shall develop appropriate forms to notify parents of forthcoming field trips and excursions. Said form shall include the nature of the trip, departure time, expected return time, name of sponsors, mode of travel, anticipated costs to the student, if any, and a space where a parent may ask that his/her child be excused, said parent to state the reasons for the requested exemption.

2092 MOTION PICTURES – USE IN THE CLASSROOM

Acceptable movie ratings for USD 205 shall be G rating at the elementary school, G and PG rating a the junior high level, and G, PG, and PG-13 at the high school level. Teachers are encouraged to show clips relevant to the curriculum rather than entire movies.

No movie above a G rating in the elementary school, PG rating in the junior high, or PG-13 rating in the high school will be shown without approval from the principal. Parent permission must also be obtained, with a choice for students to opt out and be given and alternative assignment.

No R-rated movies are to be shown at Bluestem High School in their entirety. Clips from R-rated films need to meet instructional material criteria and must be approved by the principal. Parent permission must also be obtained before showing clips from R-rated movies, with a choice for students to opt out and be given an alternative assignment.

NC-17 and X rated movies will not be allowed.

2100 RELIGION IN THE CURRICULUM

Teachers may teach about religion, religious literature and history but are prohibited from teaching, expounding or ridiculing a religion. Religious texts may be used to teach about religion, but the use of religious texts is prohibited if used to teach a particular religious doctrine or in any other way except as outlined above.

No religious belief or non-belief should be promoted by the District or its employees, and none should be disparaged. The District encourages all students and staff members to appreciate and to be tolerant of each other's religious views. The District should utilize its opportunity to foster understanding and mutual respect among students and parents, whether it involves race, culture, economic background or religious belief. In that spirit of tolerance, students and staff members should be excused from participating in practices which are contrary to their religious beliefs as provided by current law.

The Board recognizes that one of its educational goals is to advance the students' knowledge and appreciation of the role that religious heritage has played in the social, cultural and historical development of civilization.

2105 RELIGIOUS OBJECTIONS TO ACTIVITIES

A parent, guardian or adult student may request that the student be excused from participating in activities for religious reasons. The parent, guardian or adult student must submit their request in writing to the building principal within a reasonable amount of time prior to the scheduled activity, stating the specific activity, the portion of the curriculum in which the activity exists, and the reason for the request. The request may be granted, denied, or partially denied. This policy shall not be interpreted to allow parents to prevent the dissemination of information which parents find religiously objectionable. Rather, this policy only extends to actual participation

by their child in an activity, the performance of which is contrary to the child's religious teachings.

2110 HUMAN SEXUALITY / AIDS

In accordance with Kansas law, the Board of Education of Bluestem U.S.D. 205 has adopted a policy and curriculum for the teaching of Human Sexuality and Aids.

Board approved instructional resources are the focus of the Bluestem USD 205 Human Sexuality curriculum.

The concepts of Human Sexuality include Life Skills, Drug and Alcohol Abuse Prevention, and an Understanding of our Body Systems, including a knowledge of how social diseases can be acquired and prevented.

The Human Sexuality curriculum is not a separate course of study in Bluestem U.S.D. 205. The objectives are infused into the following curriculum:

Elementary

In grade Six, Board adopted curricula is introduced.

Junior High School

Grades Seven and Eight – As a part of the physical education and health class, a unit using Board adopted curricula will be taught.

Senior High School

Grades Nine through Twelve – The following courses will teach human sexuality and STD education content that is appropriate for the subject area:

- Health & Physical Education classes
- General Science & Biology classes
- Family and Consumer Science classes
- Social Studies classes

Complete copies of this policy and the curriculum may be obtained from the building Principals.

2120 LIBRARY SELECTION POLICY

Scope of the Library Media Collections

The collections should meet not only the curricular and instructional needs of a comprehensive school program, but also the needs of individuals. With these varied demands on the collection, it is necessary to set guidelines for budget expenditures.

The library media specialists shall determine a significant portion of their budgets to be directed toward purchases which fulfill curricular and instructional needs. The

remaining portion will be used to purchase selection tools and materials to meet both informational and recreational needs of individuals. These will include materials on personal and social development along with materials for exceptional students, poor and reluctant readers, and adults who work with students.

Selection of Material

While the Bluestem U.S.D. 205 Board of Education is legally responsible for materials in the school library media centers, it delegates the responsibility of selecting materials for purchase to the library media specialists. The scope of selection lies within the entire school community and recommendations are provided by faculty and students. The final consideration rests with the library media specialists, who attempt to choose materials from all forms of media which are carefully balanced for interest, vocabulary, and maturity and ability levels of all students within the school served.

All library materials are selected and recommended for purchase by the library media specialists. In selecting materials for purchase, the existing collection is evaluated and decisions for acquisition are determined by consulting reputable, unbiased, professionally prepared selection aids and/or specialists from all department and/or grade levels. The selections are compiled, requisitioned, and forwarded to the building Principal and the Superintendent for approval.

Materials should be selected for their strengths rather than rejected for their weaknesses. Materials on physiology, physical maturation or personal hygiene should be accurate and in good taste. The use of profanity or the treatment of sex in a library work is not an adequate reason for eliminating the material from the school library media collection.

It does, however, necessitate a searching evaluation of the merits – literary quality, truth of life, relevance to the curriculum – that the material may possess.

Selection Tools

Selection of materials may be based on one or more of the following methods:

- Material reviews;
- Professional judgment;
- Bibliographies;
- Indexes;
- Catalogs;
- "Basic" or "best" lists;
- Previewing;
- Exhibits:
- Examination centers:
- And input by students and teachers.

Gifts

The library media centers welcome books and other resources from individuals and organizations, but reserve the right to refuse materials deemed unsuitable.

Methods of Reconsideration of Materials

Weeding

The practice of "weeding" accomplishes the removal of materials that are outdated, worn, or otherwise no longer useful. The same thought and care given to selection of materials need to be exercised in weeding the collections so that the collection remains useful to the unique clientele it is meant to serve. Gifts will also be subject to the weeding process.

Challenged Materials

Occasional objections to a selection may be made by the public, despite the care taken to select valuable materials for student and teacher use and the qualifications of persons who select the material.

If a challenge is made, the procedure is as follows:

- 1. Be courteous, but make no commitment. Inform the Principal about the situation. Within one week, a conference will be held with the person making the challenge, the Principal, the library media specialist, and any other staff member involved in the challenge. In this initial stage, the school staff should try to explain to the person making the challenge:
 - a. The school's selection procedure, criteria and qualifications of those persons selecting the material.
 - b. The particular place the material occupies in the education program, its intended usefulness, and additional information regarding its use.
- 2. Should the person making the challenge still not be satisfied, invite the person to file objections in writing using the Request to Review a Textbook, Trade Book or Instructional Material Form. This form is to be returned to the building Principal within one week.
- 3. When the building Principal receives the written request for reconsideration, he/she shall inform the Superintendent and the library media specialist.
- 4. Upon notification by the building Principal that a written request for reconsideration has been received, the library media specialist shall temporarily withdraw the material, pending a decision of the Review Committee.
- 5. The Superintendent's office shall notify the Review Committee and the Board of Education within three school days that a written Request for Reconsideration has been received. The committee shall consist of the Superintendent, who shall be chairperson, the School District library media specialists, the building Principal involved, a community member

selected by the Superintendent and a faculty member specializing in the subject area and/or grade level.

- 6. Within two weeks of notification of the written Request for Reconsideration, the review committee shall:
 - a. Read and examine material(s) to be reconsidered.
 - b. Check acceptance of the materials by reading professional reviews and/or consulting professionals in the subject area.
 - c. Weigh values and faults against each other and form opinions based on the material as a whole and not on passages pulled out of context.
 - d. Meet to discuss the material. The person(s) making the request for reconsideration may attend this meeting.
 - e. Prepare a report of recommendation with explanatory comments.
 - f. File a copy of the report in the Board of Education Office, the building Principal's office and in the office of each of the library media centers.
 - g. Send a copy of the report to the person(s) making the request for reconsideration.
- 7. The ruling of the committee may be appealed to the Board of Education within five days. The Board of Education shall make a final decision on the appeal.

The person making the challenge may choose to withdraw from the reconsideration process at any point by notifying the building Principal involved or by failing to comply with the process.

2130 GUIDANCE AND COUNSELING PROGRAM

The guidance and counseling services of the district may be made available to any student. The guidance program may assist students in the are of educational guidance, personal guidance and vocational guidance.

In the program of educational guidance, the counselor will acquaint students with the educational system and its offerings. Students will be given assistance in selecting and enrolling in programs and courses.

Guidance and counseling on a personal basis shall attempt to assist students to understand themselves, their capabilities and limitations; to identify alternative courses of action; to coordinate services with personal assistance agencies, and to make appropriate personal decisions.

Vocational guidance will be available to assist students in career goals and objectives and to pursue programs of study related to those ends and assistance in job placement my be given students both directly and by working with other agencies.

2140 ACCESS TO DIGITAL MEDIA (Acceptable Use Policy – AUP)

The Board supports the right of students, employees and community members to have reasonable access to various information formats and believes it is incumbent upon students, employees and community members to utilize this privilege in an appropriate and reasonable manner.

The use of electronic networks shall be consistent with the District's goal of promoting educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication.

<u>Acceptable Use:</u> Access to the District's electronic networks must be a) legal, considerate, responsible and ethical; b) for the purpose of education or research and consistent with the educational objectives of the District; or c) for legitimate school business use.

<u>Privilege:</u> The use of the District's electronic networks is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use may result in disciplinary measures including cancellation of network privileges. The building administrator, in consultation with the system administrator, will make all decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated the network privileges and may deny, revoke or suspend access at any time.

<u>Electronic Communication and Storage</u>: The District's network communication tools (email, chat, texting, blogs, wikis, storage folders, etc.) are owned and controlled by the District. The District reserves the right to access and disclose the contents of any account on its system without prior notice or permission from the account user. The District will not be responsible for any damages the user suffers due to loss of data, missed deliveries, etc. The District specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through its services.

<u>Staff Responsibilities:</u> Staff members shall supervise students while using District network tools to ensure that the students abide by the Acceptable Use Policy.

<u>Prohibited Material:</u> May not be accessed by students or staff at any time, for any purpose. This material includes material that is obscene, child pornography, material that appeals to a prurient or unhealthy interest in, or depicts or describes in a patently offensive way, violence, nudity, sex, death, or bodily functions, material that has been designated for "adults" only, material that promotes or advocates illegal activity or material that is considered harmful to minors, as defined by the Children's Internet Protection Act.

Restricted Material: May not be accessed by elementary students at any time for any purpose. Restricted material may be accessed by middle school or high school students in the context of specific learning activities that have been approved by teachers or by staff for legitimate research or professional development purposes. Materials that may arguably fall within the description provided for prohibited material that may have clear educational relevance, such as material with literary, artistic, political, or scientific value, will be considered to be restricted. In addition restricted material includes materials that promote or advocate the use of drugs, alcohol and tobacco, hate and discrimination, satanic and cult group membership, school cheating, and weapons. Sites that contain

"personals" advertisements or facilitate making online connections with other people are restricted unless such sites have been specifically approved by the school.

<u>Limited Access Material</u>: Is generally considered to be non-educational or entertainment. Limited Access Material may be accessed in the context of specific learning activities that are directed by a teacher. Limited Access Material includes such material as electronic commerce, games, jokes, recreation, entertainment, sports and investment.

CERTIFIED PERSONNEL 3000 – 3999

3100	Positions
3110	Evaluation Criteria
3120	Teaching Assignments and Transfers
3125	Incentive and Retention Bonus
3130	Probation
3140	Non-School Employment and Tutoring
3150	Gifts
3160	Equipment and Supplies
3170	Meetings
3180	Professional Dress
3210	Keys
3220	Substitute Teachers
3230	Professional Meetings
3240	Professional Development Program
3270	Equal Opportunity Employment and Non-Discrimination
3280	Drug Prevention Policy
3290	Sexual / Racial Harassment Policy
3295	Employee Behavior Code

ALSO REFER TO THE USD 205 PROFESSIONAL AGREEMENT

3100 POSITIONS

Only those positions authorized by the board may be filled. The superintendent shall prepare for board approval, a comprehensive list of all positions of employment within the school system, together with the qualifications for the duties and responsibilities of each position.

3110 EVALUATION CRITERIA

The board shall adopt evaluation criteria and an evaluation instrument. The instrument shall govern the evaluation of teachers and support staff, shall be filed with the clerk and may be published in teacher handbooks. Evaluations procedures are contained in the professional agreement.

3120 TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS

The Board retains and reserves the right to assign, reassign and transfer all personnel. If any changes to a teaching assignment are made, the teacher will be notified and a conference held. Spouses will be permitted to teach in the same attendance centers.

3125 INCENTIVE AND RETENTION BONUS

The Board shall have the right to offer an incentive bonus to a prospective candidate in teaching area of short supply, as identified by the administration. An incentive bonus may be offered to current employees, when asked to and agreeing to transfer to a teaching area of short supply. Should the teacher, receiving the incentive bonus, fail to complete the entire school year/contract year, for any reason, the BOE may withhold the incentive bonus from the teacher's final check.

3130 PROBATION

The authority to recommend to the Board that certified staff members be placed on probation is delegated to the Superintendent. The Board, after hearing the Superintendent's recommendation for probation and after evaluating the evidence gathered by the administration staff, may place a certified staff member on probation. The term of probation will be established by the Board, but in no event shall a probation extend beyond a one calendar year period unless the Board first reviews all pertinent evidence pertaining to the probation, including a report by the Superintendent on the progress of the certified staff member to remedy causes for probation.

All conditions of probation shall be in writing. One copy shall be given to the employee and one copy shall be placed in the employee's personnel file.

Failure by an employee to remedy the causes of probation may result in non-renewal or termination of the employment contract.

3140 NON-SCHOOL EMPLOYMENT AND TUTORING

No teacher in the school system shall give any private lessons for pay, tutor for pay, or engage in any form of outside employment during the school day.

3145 FACULTY OWNED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Faculty owned intellectual property is defined as including, but not limited to, books, tests, articles, monographs, glossaries, bibliographies, study guides, laboratory manuals, syllabi, tests and work papers, lectures, musical and/or dramatic compositions, unpublished scripts, films, filmstrips, charts, transparencies, other visual aids, video and audio recordings, computer programs, live video and audio broadcasts, programmed instruction materials, drawings, paintings, sculptures, photographs and other works of art.

A teacher who uses district equipment or facilities during the course of his or her contractual obligations to create a copyrightable work agrees to grant the Board a royalty-free license to use or perform that work.

3150 GIFTS

Pupils should be discouraged from giving of gifts either collectively or individually to teachers. Teachers, likewise, are to be discouraged from receiving such gifts. Class funds and activity funds shall not be used to purchase gifts to sponsors or for purchase of flowers for friends or members of classes without authority of the Principal or the Superintendent.

3160 EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES

Each teacher shall be responsible for the proper and economical use of books equipment and supplies furnished him/her, as well as the accounting for such supplies and equipment furnished for classroom use.

3170 MEETINGS

During the course of a school year, it is necessary that staff meetings be held. Meetings will be held as are announced by the Principal or Superintendent. Staff member attendance at meetings will be documented by the administrator calling the meeting. Absences must be approved by the administrator scheduling the meeting.

3180 PROFESSIONAL DRESS

Teachers are expected to dress professionally, keeping in mind that teachers are to set examples for the students and that they are professional people. Professional dress expectations shall be no less that that expected of students.

3210 KEYS

Building Principals shall keep a written record of keys issued to teachers. At the close of each school year, the Principal shall inventory and document the keys assigned to each staff member. Staff may retain keys during the summer vacation as long as they continue to be under contract.

3220 SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

A teacher who is unable to meet his/her regular school assignments should notify the Principal as soon as possible. Each Principal should then choose from a list of approved substitutes furnished him/her by the District Office, some person to take charge of the classes in the absence of the regular teacher.

Teachers and others whose assignments are in more than one building should notify the Principal of the building in which they begin their day's assignment and this Principal should confer with all the Principals involved and call a substitute as may be necessary.

Substitutes are always employed and paid by the school system – never by the absent staff member. The pay for substitutes is established by the board as needed.

Extended assignment is defined as a substitute teaching assignment that will exceed ten consecutive teaching days that a substitute is required to remain in a specific teaching assignment.

If a substitute teacher is on an extended assignment, the rate of pay for the duration of that extended assignment shall be set at a higher rate established by the board.

The substitute on an extended assignment is to understand that no commitment is given for permanent employment, or for continuing pay at this higher level after the extended assignment ends.

3230 PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS

Professional meetings which members of the school staff may wish to attend are often scheduled during the school year. Requests for such attendance should first be submitted to the building Principal for approval and then to the Superintendent of Schools. Approval will be based on the merits of each individual case. Some of the factors which will be considered in approving such meetings are: number of requests received, availability of satisfactory replacements, the value attendance at the meeting will return to the School District's program(s) and whether the staff member making the request is an official delegate to the meeting, on the program or a sponsor of the meeting.

If the request is approved, the District will pay the salary of the teacher and the substitute, and the teacher will pay his/her own expenses to the meeting. The District will pay the expenses of those who are attending professional meetings at the request of the Superintendent.

Forms for securing permission to attend such meetings or for other non-sick absences may be obtained from the Superintendent's Office.

3240 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

The State of Kansas allows certified staff to re-certify through additional college hours and/or credit earned through an approved Professional Development Program.

Bluestem U.S.D. 205 has adopted, and the Kansas State Department of Education has approved, a Professional Development Program for the certified staff.

3270 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Board shall make every attempt to hire its employees on the basis of the ability and needs of the District.

The District shall be an equal opportunity employer and shall not discriminate in its employment practices and policies with respect to compensation, terms, conditions or privileges of employment because of such individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, disability or national origin.

Inquiries regarding compliance with any federal or state program may be directed to the Superintendent of Schools, Bluestem U.S.D. 205, PO Box 8, Leon, KS 67074, 316-742-3261 or to the Director of the Office of Civil Rights, Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

The District shall maintain a working environment free from discriminatory insult, intimidation or harassment due to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, national origin or handicapped status.

Any incident of discriminatory insult, intimidation or harassment in any form should promptly be reported to the immediate supervisor or other level of management for investigation and corrective action.

Any employee who engages in discriminatory insults, intimidation or harassment shall be reprimanded and counseled to refrain from such conduct. Any employee who continues to engage in such conduct shall receive progressively severe discipline.

3280 DRUG PREVENTION POLICY

As a precondition of employment, all prospective employees must submit to a preemployment drug screen.

As a condition of continued employment in the District, all employees shall abide by the terms of this Policy. Employees shall not unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use illicit drugs, controlled substances, or alcoholic beverages on District property or at any school activity. The District may, if it has reasonable suspicion to believe an employees performance is affected by drug or alcohol use, request the employee submit to a drug or alcohol screening test. Compliance with the terms of this policy is mandatory. Employees who are found violating the terms of this policy will be reported to the appropriate law enforcement officers. Additionally, an employee who violates the terms of this Policy will be subject to the following sanctions:

- 1. Short term suspension with pay;
- 2. Short term suspension without pay;
- 3. Long term suspension without pay;

- 4. Required participation in a drug and alcohol education, treatment, counseling or rehabilitation program;
- 5. Termination or dismissal from employment.

Prior to applying sanctions under this Policy, employees will be afforded all due process rights to which they are entitled under their contracts or the provisions of Kansas Law. Nothing in this Policy is intended to diminish the rights of the District to take any other disciplinary action which is provided for in District Policies or the Negotiated Agreement.

If it is agreed that an employee shall enter into and complete a drug education or rehabilitation program, the cost of such program will be borne by the employee. Drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation programs are available for employees of the District. A list of available programs along with the names and addresses of contact persons for the program is on file with the Board Clerk.

Employees are responsible for contacting the directors of the programs to determine the cost and length of the program, and for enrolling in the programs.

A copy of this Policy and drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation programs shall be provided to all employees.

3290 SEXUAL / RACIAL HARASSMENT POLICY

No District employee shall be harassed upon the basis of race, color, national origin or gender by an employee or non-employee or permit such harassment of an employee or a student by an employee or non-employee. Violation of this Policy shall result in disciplinary action, including termination, against any employee. Violation of this policy also includes any supervisor's failure to follow the policy or to investigate complaints.

If an employee's immediate supervisor is the object of a harassment complaint, the employee may bypass the supervisor and report directly to the Superintendent. Complaints against the Superintendent shall be heard by the Board.

Definition

It shall be a violation of district policy to harass another employee racially or sexually, or to permit the racial or sexual harassment of an employee by an employee or a non-employee. Sexual and racial harassment may include, but not be limited to:

- a. Sexually or racially oriented communication, including sexually or racially oriented verbal "kidding" or harassment or abuse;
- b. Subtle pressure or requests for sexual activity;
- c. Persistent unwelcome attempts to change a professional relationship into a personal, social-sexual relationship;

- d. Creating a hostile work environment including, e.g., patting, pinching, hugging, repeated brushing against another person's body;
- e. Requesting or demanding sexual favors accompanied by an implied or overt promise of preferential treatment with regard to an individual's employment; or
- a. Sexual assault or battery as defined by current law.
- g. Treatment in a manner which interferes with or limits the ability of the employee to perform work, participate in or benefit from the services, activities or programs of the school.

Any person who believes he or she has been subjected to sexual harassment should discuss the problem with his/her immediate supervisor. Regardless of the means selected for resolving the problem, the initiation of a complaint of sexual harassment will not cause any reflection on the complainant nor will it affect his

or her employment.

3295 EMPLOYEE BEHAVIOR CODE

- 1. Employees shall conduct themselves in a manner befitting one who teaches children.
- 2. The employee shall at all times respect the integrity of the child and do that which is in the best interests and welfare of the child.
- 3. All employees shall treat with respect all individuals in the school setting, this includes but is not limited to students, patrons, visitors and each other. In short, treat each person as you would like to be treated.
- 4. Employees shall use a pleasant tone of voice. If firm direction is to be given, a businesslike voice and demeanor shall be used.
- 5. When at all possible, students will be disciplined in private and not made the object of ridicule.
- 6. Students shall not be left unattended in the classroom, on the bus, at an extra curricular activity, field trip or in any other event when the student is under the supervision of an employee. If a situation arises that necessitates the employee being absent when the employee is in direct supervision of students, an administrator is to be contacted for direction.
- 7. If a student is exhibiting behavior that is causing disruption and the student fails to respond to direction to exhibit the proper behavior, the employee will contact an administrator or his/her designee immediately.
- 8. Children should not be made to stand or sit in the hall outside the classroom door as punishment. The employee should not use the Principal's office as a sitting place for students just to get them out of the room. This does not preclude the employee sending a student to the office when it is felt that additional help is needed.
- The employee shall initiate and preserve reasonable discipline and conduct of students with consistency. The employee should exhibit a self-disciplined attitude.
- 10. Employees shall not discuss private matters pertaining to a student or his/her work except with properly qualified school personnel or his parents.
- 11. It is the responsibility of the employee to make every effort to see that students under his/her control do not destroy or deface school property. The employee is to report knowledge of such damage promptly to the building administrator.
- 12. Employees who observe students disobeying rules and regulations are responsible for correcting and/or reporting such students, whether or not they are under the employee's direct supervision at that time.
- 13. Employees shall not teach or supervise students at any time while under the influence of intoxicants or non-prescriptive drugs covered under the Federal or

- State "Narcotics or Drug Abuse Laws", or when the use of prescriptive drugs adversely affects his/her ability to perform his/her required duties.
- 14. Employees have a responsibility to conference with parents at a time satisfactory to both.
- 15. The employees shall be tactful and respectful in dealing with colleagues, parents and students at all times.
- 16. Employees should follow proper chain of command when conducting school business.

CLASSIFIED STAFF

4000 – 4999

REFER TO THE CLASSIFIED STAFF HANDBOOK

STUDENTS 5000 - 5999

5000 5010 5020 5021 5022 5023 5024 5050 5055 5101 5102 5103 5104 5110 5120 5125 5130 5150 5155 5160	Philosophy of Education Admission of Students Compulsory School Law Student Attendance Student Attendance Check Release of Student During School Day Electronic Devices Control and Guidance of Students / Discipline Emergency Safety Interventions Bluestem Elementary School Discipline Policy Bluestem Middle School Discipline Policy Bluestem High School Discipline Policy Transportation Discipline Policy In-School Suspension Suspension and Expulsion of Students Lockers Dress Code Demonstrations Searches Interrogation and Investigations Conducted in School
5170	Child Abuse
5180	Drug and Alcohol Policy
5190	Discrimination Complaints
5220	Advertising
5230	Telephone Use
5240	Payment of Projects
5250	Student Insurance Program
5260 5265	Corporal Punishment Bullying
5205	Sexual Harassment Policy
5275	Racial Harassment Policy
5300	Family Rights and Privacy
5310	Weapons

5000 PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION

Bluestem Unified School District 205 believes that our way of life can best be preserved and perpetuated by allowing our youth to participate actively in a democratic society, and that this provides the best means of organizing, conducting and improving individual and group living.

Thus, we believe that preparation of youth for citizenship is one of the important objectives of education. This process involves:

- 1. The promotion of <u>Individual Development</u> so that maximum potentials are realized.
- 2. The preparation of the individual so that he/she can effectively and intelligently discharge his/her <u>Civic Responsibilities</u> at all levels of the community, state and national government, and that he/she can have an understanding of world problems as they relate to his/her government.
- 3. The preparation of the individual for Economic Efficiency.
- 4. The development and cultivation of an understanding of <u>Human Relationships</u>.
- 5. The preparation of the individual for <u>Family Life</u>.

Thus, in the light of the foregoing, the function of the school is to help each individual youth acquire the understandings, skills, ideals and values necessary to help him/her achieve his/her highest possible personal development, and in this way, to make him/her an effective American citizen

As an effective American citizen, each individual should increasingly become:

- 1. Physically fit;
- 2. Competent in work habits;
- 3. Effective in the use of fundamental skills:
- 4. Appreciative of the dignity of labor and the importance of a job well done;
- 5. Well adjusted personally;
- 6. Well informed on social, economic and political problems;
- 7. Responsible;
- 8. Cooperative;
- 9. Discriminative and critical in thinking;
- 10. Concerned for the welfare of others;
- 11. Respectful of law and of authority;
- 12. Appreciative of aesthetic beauty;
- 13. Ethical and moral in all practices and personal relations; and
- 14. Sensitive to spiritual values.

5010 ADMISSION OF STUDENTS

Entrance age for admission to kindergarten is five years of age on or before August 31 of the school year. Kindergarten training is not required for entrance into the first grade. However, a child who has been a resident of another state and who

has attained the age of eligibility to attend kindergarten in such state may enroll and attend kindergarten in Kansas regardless of age.

Entrance age to the first grade shall be six years of age on or before August 31 of the school year. However, a child who has been a resident of another state and who (a) had reached the age of eligibility to enter the first grade in that state or (b) has completed a kindergarten course in such state (maintained by a public school district or an accredited private denominational or parochial school) will be eligible to attend the first grade of a Kansas school district regardless of age.

Birth certificates are required for all kindergarten or first grade enrollees who are enrolling for the first time as proof of age. Birth certificates presented as proof of age will be returned to the parents after the required data is recorded on the permanent school records. Birth certificates must be turned in to the school no later than October 1 or the school will work with local law enforcement agencies to attain proof of the child's identity.

Grade placement in Bluestem USD 205 most often will be based upon an examination of previous school records, but may be based on achievement tests administered by our staff.

Secondary enrollees should present a transcript of the record made in the last school attended at the time of enrollment in order to facilitate the enrollment process.

In accordance with the provision of the Kansas School Immunization Law 72-5208, 72-5209 and 72-5211a) and K.A.R. 28-1-20, the following policy shall be applicable to all students attending any Bluestem USD 205 School.

No pupil shall be allowed to enroll without parents having first signed a waiver stating they will provide documentation of immunizations within 90 days of enrollment or that a medical or religious exemption has been claimed.

See current Kansas Certificate of Immunization for required vaccines.

Note: Those students transferring to Bluestem USD 205 Schools during the school year will be given a 90 day period to obtain copies of their immunization records.

Parents/guardians must sign the Immunization Statement for Transferring Students.

Evidence of Immunization

- 1. Kansas Certificate of Immunization
- 2. International Certificate of Immunization
- 3. Military Record
- 4. Transcript from previous school
- 5. Physician's or health department record that has been properly signed.
- 6. Any other source deemed appropriate by the school nurse.
- 1. Every student enrolling in any district school for the first time shall provide the building principal with certification from a physician or local health department that the student has received such tests and inoculations as are deemed necessary by the Kansas Department of Health and Environment. Students who have not completed

the required inoculations may enroll and remain enrolled while completing the required inoculations if a physician or local health department certifies that the student has received the most recent appropriate inoculations in all required series. Failure to timely complete all required series shall be deemed noncompliance. Booster shots required by the Kansas Department of Health and Environment are also required.

- 2. As an alternative to the immunizations required, a student shall present: (1) an annual written statement signed by a licensed physician stating the physical condition of the child to be such that the tests or inoculations would seriously endanger the life or health of the child; or (2) an annual written statement signed by one parent or guardian that the child is an adherent of a religious denomination whose religious teachings are opposed to such tests or inoculations. Students who are not immunized against a particular disease(s) shall be excluded from school during any outbreak.
- 3. Any student who fails to comply with the above immunization requirements shall be excluded from school until that student complies with the requirements of Kansas law. The building nurse will notify the parent or guardian of non-compliant students at least three (3) times during the course of the first semester of school. Notification of immunization non-compliance letters will be sent on or before September 30, October 31, and November 30. Nurses will provide parents or guardians information related to available resources for immunizations. Notification of noncompliance may be made by mail, email, and/or telephone. Nurses will document thoroughly how notification was made on the student record.
- 4. If the student remains non-compliant throughout the first semester, the building principal will notify the parent or guardian in December by telephone that the student will be excluded on the first day of the second semester until such time that the student is compliant with Kansas immunization laws. Non-compliance after exclusion may result in a referral for truancy.

Children who are homeless as defined by law and who are located in the district will be admitted as resident students. The superintendent of schools will act as the homeless coordinator for the district.

Non-resident students may be admitted, on an annually reviewed basis, only to the extent that staff, facilities, equipment and supplies are available. A non-resident student who has been suspended or expelled from another district will not be admitted to the district unless approved by the Board. Additional building level requirements are located in the student and or parent handbooks.

5020 COMPULSORY SCHOOL LAW

See Kansas Statutes: 72-1111.

Kansas Statutes may be viewed at http://www.kslegislature.org/legrv-statutes/index.do.

5021 STUDENT ATTENDANCE

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5022 STUDENT ATTENDANCE CHECK

When a student is not reported absent from school, a timely attempt shall be made to contact the parent to determine the reason for the absence. The principal has been designated to determine the acceptability and validity of excuses presented by the parent(s) or the student.

5023 RELEASE OF STUDENT DURING SCHOOL DAY

Building principals will not release a minor student during the school day except to a student's lawful parent or custodian as defined by Kansas law and whose identification is verified to the satisfaction of the principal or upon written or verbal request of a parent or lawful custodian. Students shall not be voluntarily released by school officials to law enforcement authorities unless a student has been placed under arrest or taken into custody by law enforcement or SRS.

5024 ELECTRONIC DEVICES

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5050 CONTROL AND GUIDANCE OF STUDENTS / DISCIPLINE

Since the primary purpose of the school and faculty is to teach young people; and since the primary purpose of the student being in school is to learn, it is necessary that good order or discipline be established. The school has the responsibility and the authority to control students in the interest of individual as well as group welfare.

There are times when the authority vested in the school must be used to control students by means which do not seem to promote growth. Every effort should be made, however, to make the discipline of the school contribute to the continuous growth of the student. The teacher should always seek to have the parents share in the responsibility of dealing with the behavior problems of the child. This means that frequent communication between teacher and parents is necessary in cases of behavior problems.

Ultimately, then, as we teach self-discipline to our youth, we are striving to help each individual acquire the understandings, skills, ideals and values necessary to make him/her an effective American citizen.

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5055 EMERGENCY SAFETY INTERVENTIONS

The board of education is committed to limiting the use of Emergency Safety Interventions ("ESI"), such as seclusion and restraint, with all students. The board of education encourages all employees to utilize other behavioral management tools, including prevention techniques, de-escalation techniques, and positive behavioral intervention strategies.

This policy shall be made available on the district website with links to the policy available on any individual school pages.

Definitions (See K.A.R. 91-42-1)

"Emergency Safety Intervention" is the use of seclusion or physical restraint when a student presents an immediate danger to self or others. Violent action that is destructive of property may necessitate the use of an emergency safety intervention.

"Seclusion" requires all three of the following conditions to be met: (1) the student is placed in an enclosed area by school personnel; (2) the student is purposefully isolated from adults and peers; and (3) the student is prevented from leaving, or reasonably believes that the student will be prevented from leaving, the enclosed area.

"Chemical Restraint" means the use of medication to control a student's violent physical behavior or restrict a student's freedom of movement.

"Mechanical Restraint" means any device or object used to limit a student's movement.

"Physical Restraint" means bodily force used to substantially limit a student's movement.

"Physical Escort" means the temporary touching or holding the hand, wrist, arm, shoulder, or back of a student who is acting out for the purpose of inducing the student to walk to a safe location.

"Time-out" means a behavioral intervention in which a student is temporarily removed from a learning activity without being confined.

Prohibited Types of Restraint

All staff members are prohibited from engaging in the following actions with all students:

Using face-down (prone) physical restraint;

Using face-up (supine) physical restraint;

Using physical restraint that obstructs the student's airway;

Using physical restraint that impacts a student's primary mode of communication;

Using chemical restraint, except as prescribed by a licensed healthcare professional for treatment of a medical or psychiatric condition; and

Use of mechanical restraint, except:

Protective or stabilizing devices required by law or used in accordance with an order from a licensed healthcare professional:

Any device used by law enforcement officers to carry out law enforcement duties; or Seatbelts and other safety equipment used to secure students during transportation.

Training

All staff members shall be trained regarding the use of positive behavioral intervention strategies, de-escalation techniques, and prevention techniques. Such training shall be consistent with nationally recognized training programs on the use of emergency

safety interventions. The intensity of the training provided will depend upon the employee's position. Administrators, licensed staff members, and other staff deemed most likely to need to restrain a student will be provided more intense training than classified staff who do not work directly with students in the classroom. District and building administration shall make the determination of the intensity of training required by each position.

Each school building shall maintain documentation regarding the training that was provided and a list of participants.

Documentation

The principal or designee shall provide written notification to the student's parents any time that ESI is used with a student. Such notification must be provided within two (2) school days.

In addition, each building shall maintain documentation any time ESI is used with a student. Such documentation must include all of the following:

Date and time of the intervention,

Type of intervention,

Length of time the intervention was used, and

School personnel who participated in or supervised the intervention.

All such documentation shall be provided to the building principal, who shall be responsible for providing copies of such documentation to the superintendent on at least a biannual basis. At least once per school year, each building principal or designee shall review the documentation of ESI incidents with appropriate staff members to consider the appropriateness of the use of ESI in those instances.

Reporting Data

District administration shall report ESI data to the state department of education as required.

Local Dispute Resolution Process

The board of education encourages parents to attempt to resolve issues relating to the use of ESI informally with the building principal and/or the superintendent before filing a formal complaint with the board. In the event that the complaint is resolved informally, the administrator must provide a written report of the informal resolution to the superintendent and the parents and retain a copy of the report at the school. The superintendent will share the informal resolution with the board of education and provide a copy to the state department of education.

If the issues are not resolved informally with the building principal and/or the superintendent, the parents may submit a formal written complaint to the board of education by providing a copy of the complaint to the clerk of the board and the superintendent.

Upon receipt of a formal written complaint, the board president shall assign an investigator to review the complaint and report findings to the board as a whole. Such investigator may be a board member, a school administrator selected by the board, or a board attorney. Such investigator shall be informed of the obligation to maintain confidentiality of student records and shall report the findings and recommended action to the board in executive session.

Any such investigation must be completed within thirty (30) days of receipt of the formal written complaint by the board clerk and superintendent. On or before the 30th day after receipt of the written complaint, the board shall adopt a report containing written findings of fact and, if necessary, appropriate corrective action. A copy of the report adopted by the board shall be provided to the parents, the school, and the state board of education.

5101 BLUESTEM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended

5102 BLUESTEM MIDDLE SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5103 BLUESTEM HIGH SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5104 TRANSPORTATION DISCIPLINE POLICY

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5110 IN-SCHOOL SUSPENSION

An in-school suspension may be used as a means to allow a student to maintain his/her school-work while he/she is on suspension. It is the intention of the in-school suspension to restrict the activity of a student from the general student body. The principal has the prerogative of changing from an in-school suspension to an out-of-school suspension should circumstances change. The in-school suspension is a "short-term" suspension as defined by Kansas statute.

A student serving in-school suspension will be isolated from all other students during the school day and will not be allowed to participate in activities outside of school hours or attend and/or participate in activities or assemblies during school hours.

A student will be provided with all subject assignments and work may be made up during an in-school suspension. A student serving in-school suspension will be considered present for attendance purposes and must be supervised by school personnel at all times.

5120 SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF STUDENTS

See Kansas Statutes 72-8901 through 72-8906.

Kansas Statutes may be viewed at http://www.kslegislature.org/legsrv-statutes/index.do.

5125 LOCKERS

Lockers are provided by the District as a convenience to the students for the

storage of clothing, supplies and equipment necessary to school attendance. The lockers are the property of the School District, under the supervision of the Building Principal and the Superintendent of Schools at all times. Use of lockers by students is restricted to storage of those lawful items necessary for participation in class work and sanctioned extra-curricular activities. The Building Principal(s) shall assure the security, in a storage place designed to guard against unauthorized access or use, of the combinations or the keys to all locks, if any, for student lockers.

Lockers are subject to periodic searches, announced or unannounced, targeted or random, with or without notice to the student to whom a particular locker is assigned, whether or not the student is present, by school officials including the Building Principal or his or her designee, and, when authorized by the Superintendent of Schools, by law enforcement officers. Such searches may include sweeps of all lockers located in a building by dogs specially trained to detect the presence of and to locate such prohibited items.

5130 DRESS CODE

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5150 DEMONSTRATIONS

Any student who shall take part or participate in any fashion in any demonstration not authorized by the Superintendent of Schools during school hours or on school premises shall be subject to suspension from classes. The suspension from classes for such action shall be for a period of not less than three days nor more than five days on any one occurrence.

Reoccurrences of violations concerning demonstrations shall be considered a basis for pupil expulsion; such action shall be taken by the Superintendent after the matter has been reviewed by the Board of Education acting as a committee of the whole. Expulsion shall be subject to K.S.A. 72-8906, as amended by the 1982 Kansas Legislature.

5155 SEARCHES

- A. <u>Overview</u>. While recognizing that the individual student has a right to some privacy in an atmosphere which encourages growth towards responsible and mature personalities, the District cannot and will not tolerate conduct which violates Federal or State Law or District policies, or otherwise jeopardizes the health, safety and general welfare of the student body, specifically including violations of the "drug free" and "weapons free" school zone.
- B. <u>Searches by Building Principal</u>. The Building Principal may search any locker at any time the Principal reasonably believes that the locker contains or may contain any matter prohibited from being possessed or around school property by Federal or State law or by Board policy. Any such search may be made without prior notice to the student to whom the locker has been assigned and with or without the student being present.

- C. <u>Searches by Third Persons</u>. Any person other than the Building Principal who wishes to search a student's locker shall report to the Building Principal before proceeding to the locker, and in no event shall such person be permitted to search the student's locker without the Principal's presence unless such person has a valid search warrant authorizing him to make such search.
- D. <u>Searches by Law Enforcement Officers</u>. The District will endeavor to reasonably cooperate with law enforcement officers in the carrying out of their statutory duties.

If a law enforcement officer desiring to search a student's locker has a warrant for authorizing such a search, the Building Principal shall immediately take such person to the student's locker and permit the officer to search the locker. The search shall be made in the presence of the Building Principal.

If a law enforcement officer desires to search a student's locker without a warrant, the Building Principal shall ask what facts lead the officer to believe that evidence of a crime will be lost, destroyed, or moved if the search and seizure did not take place immediately, before a warrant is obtained. If the information provided by the law enforcement officer gives the Building Principal reasonable suspicion that a crime has been committed, the Principal may choose to search the student's locker. If the information does not provide a reasonable suspicion and no warrant is offered, the Principal shall report the incident to the Superintendent, who may notify the officer's superior of the incident.

E. <u>Use of Dogs Trained to Search</u>. Law enforcement officers may, when authorized by the Superintendent of Schools, conduct a sweep of all lockers located in the building, on a periodic or random basis, with dogs specially trained to detect the presence of and locate weapons or illicit drugs. As provided above, the student body shall be advised at the beginning of each school year of the likely occurrence of such searches, which may thereafter be conducted without notice to any student, whether or not any student is present.

Upon reasonable suspicion and at the request of the administration, law enforcement officers or licensed private agencies may use trained dogs on school premises to identify student property which may contain illegal or illicit materials and to determine whether materials are present which may threaten the general health, welfare, and safety of students and/or district employees.

- F. Recovery of Prohibited Items. Prohibited items recovered from a student's locker shall remain in the custody of either the Building Principal or the law enforcement officer. If such items are turned over to law enforcement officials the Principal shall receive a receipt for the items.
- G. <u>Search of Persons</u>. When it has been determined by the Building Principal that there is reason to believe that a student has in his or her possession an object which can jeopardize the health, welfare or safety of others, that student shall be ordered to report to the Building Principal's office. This determination may be based on any information received by the Building Principal, designated representative or by a member of the faculty or staff. It also may be based on knowledge of the student's disciplinary problems, the student's association with

known drug offenders, the student's exhibiting objects associated with drug use or the student's exhibiting such objects as bullets or a knife sheath which could be associated with dangerous weapons.

Once in the Principal's office, the student shall be advised of the reason why he has been ordered to report to the Principal's office. The student shall then be permitted to empty the student's items such as, but not limited to, pockets. purses, shoulder bags and briefcases. Strip searches shall not be conducted by school officials. Items which the Building Principal believes may be connected with illegal activity may remain in the custody of the Building Principal, unless such items are turned over to law enforcement officials; and if this is done, the Principal shall receive a receipt for such item so delivered. If the student refuses to comply with this request, the Building Principal shall notify the student's parents and request that they come to the school at once. The Building Principal shall advise the parents of the immediate situation. If the parents of the student are unable to persuade the student to comply, the parents and the student shall be advised that law enforcement officials will be notified and the matter turned over to them. If the parents refuse to come to the school or are unable to be notified and the student continues to refuse to cooperate, the Building Principal shall notify law enforcement officials and inform them of the facts. Any further search of the student shall be at the discretion and under the control of the law enforcement officials with a valid warrant. Any search of an individual person or a privately owned vehicle by a law enforcement officer shall be conducted only upon presentation of a properly executed search warrant for that specific student or for that specific vehicle.

The Board of Education authorizes the use of hand-held metal detectors to check a student's person or personal effects during activities or events sponsored by Bluestem School district or any time during school hours or school events. If a school official, School Resource Officer, or a law enforcement officer has reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular student is in possession of an illegal or unauthorized metal-containing object or weapon, he or she may conduct a metal detector check of the student's person and personal effects. A student's failure to permit a metal detector check as provided in this policy may be considered grounds for disciplinary action including suspension.

Once the Building Principal has relinquished control of the student to the law enforcement officials, the Building Principal shall remain with the student and be present during any search of the student made by law enforcement officials on school property. A written report of each search shall be made by the Building Principal and submitted to the Superintendent. The written report shall contain the name of the student; the time, date and place of the search; the reason or reasons for the search; the fact that law enforcement officials were called; the name of the person who conducted the actual search; the names of the persons present while the student was being searched; the result of the search; and the objects confiscated. The Superintendent shall keep a copy of the written report on file.

H. A preliminary breath test or PBT may be conducted in a random pattern selection during activities, or events sponsored by Bluestem School District or any time during school hours or school events when a student displays reasonable

suspicion of using alcohol. The PBT will be performed by the School Resource Officer, or by a public law enforcement agent called to respond to the site. Instruction for use and calibration of the PBT apparatus will be done and documented as necessary. If a student is tested with a positive PBT indicating presence or use of alcohol, district drug and alcohol policies and procedures will be followed. The student will be detained until a parent or law enforcement officer takes custody of the student. A student's refusal to comply with the request of the School Resource Officer or law enforcement agent in performing the PBT may be considered grounds for disciplinary action including suspension.

5160 INTERROGATION AND INVESTIGATIONS CONDUCTED IN SCHOOL

It shall be the policy of the District that a reasonable cooperative effort be maintained between the school administration and law enforcement agencies. Law enforcement officials may be summoned in order to conduct an investigation of alleged criminal conduct on the school premise or during a school-sponsored activity. They may also be summoned for the purpose of maintaining or restoring order when the presence of such officers is necessary to prevent injury to persons or property. Administrators have the responsibility and the authority to determine when the presence and assistance of law enforcement officers is necessary within their respective jurisdictions. The District's administrators shall at all times act in a manner which protects the rights of students and parents and shall cooperate with law enforcement officials.

School staff members shall be reminded annually of the contents of this policy and rules.

A student who has attained the age of 18 enjoys the responsibility of speaking for himself/herself without the agreement of parent or representative as to his/her submitting to questioning.

Initiated by School Administrators and Conducted by Administrators

Building Principals shall have the authority and duty to conduct investigations and to question students pertaining to infractions of school rules, whether or not the alleged conduct is a violation of criminal law. Any investigation shall be conducted in a manner which minimizes interference with regular education or school activities.

Initiated by School Administrators and Conducted by Law Enforcement Officers

The building Principal shall determine when the necessity exists for law enforcement officers to be notified to conduct an investigation of alleged criminal behavior.

The building Principal may request that law enforcement officers and/or school resource officers conduct an investigation and question students who are potential witnesses of such alleged criminal behavior during school hours. A reasonable attempt shall be made to contact the parents or representative of any students who is the victim of or suspected of alleged criminal behavior prior to questioning by law enforcement officers. Reasonable requests of the parents or representative shall be observed. Such notifications or attempted notifications to parents or representative shall be documented by the administrator involved. In the absence of a student's

parents or representative during any questions of such students, the principal or certified school staff person shall be present.

If the investigation has centered on any particular student suspected of any alleged criminal activity, the procedure for taking students into custody shall not interfere with reasonable law enforcement procedures.

Initiated and Conducted by Law Enforcement Officers

Only in demonstrated emergency situations shall law enforcement officers be voluntarily permitted to conduct such an investigation during school hours.

The building Principal shall require proper identification of law enforcement officials and the probable cause for the interrogation or investigation of a student. If the Principal is not satisfied with either the identification or the probable cause, he/she shall not grant the request of such persons and shall attempt to so notify the Superintendent and the officer's superior, documenting such action.

The law enforcement officers shall be required to obtain prior approval of the Principal before beginning such an interrogation or investigation on school premises. The administrator shall document the circumstances as soon as practicable.

Interrogation of Student during Investigation of Violations of School Rules

In instances where school rules have allegedly been violated, the Principal(s) may notify the suspected rule violator(s). When suspension may be a consideration, the suspect student shall be advised orally or in writing of the nature of the alleged offense and of the evidence

Probable witnesses should be told the nature of the alleged misconduct and the reason to believe that they were witnesses. The Principal may have another adult present during questioning of students.

Violations of Criminal Law

During an investigation of violation of school rules, the Principal shall attempt to ascertain whether there is sufficient justification to believe that a criminal offense was committed that warrants notification to law enforcement officials.

Information of criminal conduct not related to the schools shall be turned over to law enforcement officials, without additional investigation by school officials. School officials shall request that law enforcement officers advise a student of his/her rights.

Taking a Student into Custody

Following either interrogation or investigation, students shall not be released to law enforcement authorities voluntarily by school officials unless the student has been placed under arrest or taken into the custody of the SRS.

When students are removed from school for any reason by law enforcement authorities, every reasonable effort will be made to notify the student's parents or representative immediately. Such effort shall be documented.

Parents shall not be notified by school officials when their child is taken into custody by SRS and/or law enforcement as a result of allegations of abuse or neglect.

The building Principal shall make reasonable efforts to persuade law enforcement officers not to make arrests or to take students into custody on school premises.

When an emergency exists, the Principal may summon law enforcement officials to the school to take a student into custody.

When a student has been taken into custody or arrested on school premises without prior notification to the building Principal, the school staff present shall require the law enforcement officers to notify the Principal of the circumstances as quickly as possible.

Disturbance of School Environment

Law enforcement officers may be requested to assist in controlling disturbances of the school environment.

5170 CHILD ABUSE

Any employee of the District who has reasonable cause to know or suspect that a child has been subject to abuse or neglect or who has observed the child being subjected to circumstances or conditions which would reasonably result in abuse or neglect will immediately report or cause a report to be made to the local Social Rehabilitation Services (SRS) office or to the local law enforcement agency if the SRS office is not open.

School employees will not contact the child's family or any other persons to determine the cause of the suspected abuse or neglect. It is not the responsibility of the school employees to prove that the child has been abused or neglected.

SRS Access to Students on School Premises

The building Principal is authorized to act <u>in loco parentis</u> to protect the interests of the student when allowing a student to be interviewed by SRS representatives on school premises.

Cooperation Between School and Agencies

Elementary and secondary schools, SRS and law enforcement agencies shall cooperate with each other in the investigation of reports of suspected child abuse or neglect. To the extent that safety and practical consideration allow, law enforcement officers on school premises for the purpose of investigating a report of suspected child abuse or neglect shall not be in uniform.

5180 DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

The Board of Education and educators recognize the illegal use of drugs and alcohol as being detrimental to the positive development of students. The school's primary role in this area is to educate students concerning the hazards of drug and alcohol use.

All Bluestem USD 205 personnel and students have the responsibility to report to the Principal observed use or knowledge of any chemical substances. These chemical substances include any un-prescribed prescription drug, narcotic drug, alcohol, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana, solvent or narcotic device.

Students shall not unlawfully manufacture, distribute, possess, use or be under the influence of any chemical substances on or within 500 feet of the school grounds or school property, off the school grounds at a school activity, or upon arrival at school or a school function.

<u>First Offense</u> – With the first violation of this policy, the student may be suspended from school for 5 days and can be subject to long term suspension or an expulsion hearing. The expulsion hearing will include discussion of a recommendation that the student receive an evaluation and any necessary counseling from a professional chemical dependency counselor (the cost of such programs will be borne by the student and his/her parents) prior to re-admittance to school on a probationary status. If at anytime a student fails to make satisfactory progress in a program, the expulsion will be re-imposed.

<u>Second Offense</u> – A student who violates the terms of the policy for the second time may be expelled from school for the remainder of the school year and will not be allowed to participate in or attend any school activities during the expulsion.

Students who are suspended or expelled under the terms of this policy will be afforded the due process rights contained in Board Policies and Kansas Statutes, KSA 72-8901, et seq. Nothing in this policy is intended to diminish the ability of the District to take other disciplinary action against the student in accordance with other policies governing student discipline. In the event a student agrees to enter into and complete a drug education or rehabilitation program, the cost of such program will be borne by the student and his/her parents. Drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation program contacts are available for students of the District. Parents or students should contact the directors of the programs to determine the cost and length of the program.

A copy of this policy and available counseling and rehabilitation programs will be provided to all students and the parents of all students. Parents of all students will be notified that compliance with this policy is mandatory.

5190 DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINTS

The District is committed to maintaining a working and learning environment free from discrimination, insult, intimidation or harassment due to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or disability.

Any incident of discrimination including acts of harassment shall promptly be reported for investigation and corrective action by the building Principal or District Compliance Coordinator. Any employee or student who engages in discriminatory conduct shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination from employment or expulsion from school.

Discrimination against any student on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability or religion in the admission or access to, or treatment in the District's programs and activities is prohibited. The Superintendent of Schools, 711 N West Street, Leon, KS 67074, 316-742-3261, has been designated to coordinate compliance with nondiscrimination requirements contained in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Any student who believes that he or she has been discriminated against may file a complaint with the building Principal, another Administrator, the Guidance Counselor, or another certified staff member. Any school employee who receives a complaint of discrimination or harassment from a student shall inform the student of the employee's obligation to report the complaint and any proposed resolution of the complaint to the building Principal. If the building Principal is the alleged harasser, the report shall be made to the Superintendent. Complaints against the Superintendent shall be made to the Clerk of the Board, and forwarded to the Board President.

5220 ADVERTISING

No agent, lecturer or exhibitor shall be permitted to use the schools for any purpose connected with his/her business, except by written permission of the Superintendent. Nor shall any notices be given in the schools of any exhibition, lecturer or other pupil exercise without such permission. The schools and school premises shall in no way be an advertising medium except for those things that pertain to their welfare and promotion. (See also Policy 8045)

5230 TELEPHONE USE

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5240 PAYMENT OF PROJECTS

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

5250 STUDENT INSURANCE PROGRAM

The Board has purchased secondary medical insurance to cover all students during the school day and on school-related activities and trips.

Medical expenses not covered by this insurance or by the KSHSAA Catastrophic Insurance or Activities Insurance are the responsibility of the parents.

5260 CORPORAL PUNISHMENT

Principals are authorized to impose corporal punishment on students for disciplinary reasons whenever, in their judgment, the act or acts of a student warrant such punishment. Such punishment shall be administered in private by the principal, designated representative or teacher but in the presence of another adult witness.

Corporal punishment will not be used as a first line of discipline for misbehavior but shall be used only after alternative disciplinary measures have been used without success, except for those acts of misconduct which are severely antisocial or disruptive in nature. Corporal punishment shall be used only in relation to behavior arising in the student-school relationship.

No corporal punishment shall be cruel, unusual or excessive. Such punishment shall be administered by striking the student on the buttocks with a paddle. No such punishment shall be inflicted so as to cause any permanent or disabling injury to the student. No punishment shall be administered in anger or with malicious intent. The extent of the punishment shall correspond to the seriousness of the offense as is possible. The punishment shall also take into account the general health and physique of the student.

Corporal punishment may also be administered for any violation of the behavior code. In addition to the foregoing, each building principal may adopt rules in the use of corporal punishment. Any such rules must be approved by the Board.

The superintendent shall receive a written report from the person administering any such punishment within 24 hours of the administration of the punishment. The report shall be kept in a file in the central office. Reports may be given to the Board, or upon request by the Board.

5265 BULLYING

The board of education prohibits bullying in any form on school property, in a school vehicle, at a school-sponsored activity or event or by means of any form of electronic communication. The administration shall propose, and the board shall review and approve a plan to address bullying on school property, in a school vehicle, at a school-sponsored activity or event or by means of any form of electronic communication.

The plan shall include provisions for the training and education of staff members and students and shall include appropriate community involvement as approved by the board. Students or staff who have bullied others in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension, expulsion and termination. If the superintendent deems it appropriate, students who violate the bullying prohibition shall be reported to local law enforcement.

5270 SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

District employees shall not sexually harass, or permit sexual harassment of a student by another employee, student, non-employee or non-student. Neither shall a student sexually harass another student or students. Violation of this policy shall

result in disciplinary action, including termination of an employee, or disciplinary action against the student(s) involved. Supervisors who fail to follow this policy or who fail to investigate complaints shall be in violation of this policy. If the Principal is the object of a harassment complaint, the student may bypass the Principal and report directly to the Superintendent. Complaints against the Superintendent shall be heard by the Board.

Definitions

Sexual harassment may include, but not be limited to:

- a. Sexually oriented communication, including sexually oriented verbal "kidding" or harassment or abuse;
- b. Subtle pressure or requests for sexual activity;
- c. Persistent unwelcome attempts to change a professional relationship into a personal, social-sexual relationship;
- d. Creating a hostile school environment, including the use of innuendoes or overt or implied threats;
- e. Unnecessary touching of an individual, e.g., patting, pinching, hugging, repeated brushing against another person's body;
- Requesting or demanding sexual favors accompanied by an implied or overt promise of preferential treatment with regard to a student's grades or status in any activity; or
- g. Sexual assault or battery as defined by current law.

Any student who believes he or she has been subjected to sexual harassment should discuss the problem with his/her Principal or another certified staff member. Initiation of a sexual harassment complaint will not cause any adverse reflection on the student. The initiation of a student's complaint shall not adversely affect the job security or status of any employee or student until a finding of fact determines that improper conduct occurred. False or malicious complaints of sexual harassment may result in corrective or disciplinary action against the complainant. Strict confidentiality shall be maintained throughout the complaint procedure.

5275 RACIAL HARASSMENT POLICY

District employees shall not racially harass, or permit racial harassment of a student by another employee, student, non-employee or non-student. Neither shall a student racially harass another student or students. Violation of this policy shall result in disciplinary action, including termination of an employee, or disciplinary action against the student(s) involved. Supervisors who fail to follow this policy or who fail to investigate complaints shall be in violation of this policy. If the Principal is the object of a harassment complaint, the student may bypass the Principal and report directly to the Superintendent. Complaints against the Superintendent shall be heard by the Board.

Racial harassment is unlawful discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin under Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Kansas Acts against Discrimination. All forms of racial harassment are prohibited at school, on school property, and at all school-sponsored activities, programs or events. Racial harassment against individuals associated with the school is prohibited, whether or not the harassment occurs on school grounds.

Any student who believes he or she has been subjected to racial harassment should discuss the problem with his or her Principal or another certified staff member. Initiation of a racial harassment complaint will not cause any adverse reflection on the student. The initiation of a student's complaint shall not adversely affect the job security or status of any employee or student until a finding of fact determines that improper conduct occurred. False or malicious complaints of racial harassment may result in correction or disciplinary action against the complainant. Strict confidentiality shall be maintained throughout the complaint procedure.

5300 FAMILY RIGHTS AND PRIVACY

The Board of Education of Bluestem USD 205 has adopted the following policy relating to the Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. The Board designates the Building Principals as the custodians of student records and has charged them with the duty of complying with all parts of the Act.

- A. The student records that are of concern are those records that become a part of a student's cumulative records, which would be compiled from teachers' grades and comments made for future educational reference, and the record that would be kept on permanent file at a school or might be transferred if a student would change schools for attendance purposes.
- B. Individuals who may have access to student records without consent of parents or eligible student are:
 - School officials, including teachers, within the educational institution.
 - Officials of other schools or school systems where students are seeking enrollment. Parents should be notified of transfer and may receive a copy if desired and have an opportunity for a hearing to challenge content.
 - 3. Authorized representative of:
 - a. Controller General of the United States
 - b. Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare
 - c. Administrative head of education agency
 - d. State educational authorities
 - e. In connection with student's application for financial aid
 - f. Organizations conducting studies for education agency for the purpose of developing, validating or administering tests or programs
 - g. Accrediting organizations
 - h. Parents of students over 18, if parents claim student as dependent for

- income tax purposes
- In an emergency, to appropriate persons, if knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other persons
- C. Schools may make directory information available without parental or student consent. Directory information shall be such general information as is used in programs for athletics or other award programs and information in the school annual. The parents should be notified in the general announcement about the use of this type of information. The release of this general type of information shall be authorized until such time a parent of an eligible student registers a request that directory information not be released on that particular student without prior consent.
- D. Rights of parents under the act:
 - 1. Parents use here includes natural parents, adoptive parents or legal guardians of the student.
 - 2. The parents have the right to inspect and review educational records of their child within 45 days of requesting date.
 - 3. The parent has a right to have a copy of student records, with the cost of reproduction being paid by the parent.
 - 4. The parent has the right to a hearing to challenge the content of his/her child's educational record, to insure that the records are not inaccurate, misleading, inappropriate, or in violation of the privacy of the student. The parent may request that information be inserted which would explain the content of the record.
 - 5. The parent has the right to have the student's educational record explained and interpreted.
 - 6. The parent has the right to give prior consent before the institution can release the student's educational record. The written consent must include the following:
 - a. Specific record to be released
 - b. Reason for release
 - c. Name of the parent or agency to whom the record will be released
 - d. Notification to parent that he/she may receive a copy of the record being released, if a copy is desired.
 - 7. The parent should be notified of transfer of student records and the right to challenge the content of the record to be transferred.
 - 8. The parent has the right to notification of receipt of subpoena of student records prior to institution compliance with subpoena.

9. The parent has the right to notification of a request of judicial order by the custodian of educational record to the court.

E. Rights afforded students under the act:

- The student is any person who is attending or has attended the educational institution and with respect to whom that institution maintains educational records or personally identified information.
- 2. The student acquires all rights afforded parents when he/she attains the age of eighteen years.
- 3. The student has the right to have his/her physical or mental records reviewed by a physician or appropriate professional of the student's choice.
- 4. If the student's legal guardian is an institution, a party independent of the institution shall be appointed pursuant to state and local law to give a written parental consent required by the Act.

F. Duties of the educational institution:

- The educational institution is any public or private agency or institution which is a recipient of funds under any federal program for which the U.S. Commissioner of Education has administrative responsibility.
- 2. The institution shall provide notice, at least annually, to the parent of eligible students of the rights afforded them by the Act. This shall be done in the student handbook that is edited and published at the beginning of each year. It shall provide all pertinent information as is required by the Act.
- 3. The school will maintain a record of the request and legitimate interest of requesting party in obtaining the educational record. The school should include information to the receiving party about not releasing the information to a third party without written consent.
- 4. The school shall provide the parent or eligible student with a hearing when requested by them to challenge the content of the student's educational record. The following steps should be taken in setting up and conducting the hearing:
 - a. Hearing will be conducted in a reasonable length of time after it is requested.
 - b. The hearing should be conducted and the decision rendered by an official who does not have a direct interest in the hearing outcome.
 - c. The parent or eligible student should be allowed to present relevant evidence.
 - d. The decision be rendered in writing and within a reasonable time after the hearing concludes.
- 5. Bluestem USD 205 will not be responsible for notifying the parent or student each time school records are sent to another educational institution.

5310 WEAPONS

A student shall not knowingly possess, handle or transmit any object that can reasonably be considered a weapon on the school grounds or off the school grounds at a school activity, function or event.

This Policy shall include any weapon, any item being used as a weapon or destructive device, or any facsimile of a weapon.

Possession of a firearm shall result in expulsion from school for a period of one year (186 school days), except that the Superintendent may recommend that this expulsion requirement be modified on a case-by-case basis under the provisions of law.

As used in this Policy, the term "firearm" means any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, the frame or receiver of any such weapon, or any firearm muffler or silencer; or any destructive device.

As used in this Policy, the term "destructive device" means any explosive, incendiary or poison gas: bomb, grenade, rocket, having a propellant charge of more than four ounces, missile having any explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, mine or other device similar to any of these devices.

See KSA 72-89a02.

FINANCES/FISCAL MANAGEMENT/BUSINESS MANAGEMENT 6000-6999

6000	Fiscal Goals and Objectives
6010	Investment of Funds
6020	Bids and Quotations Requirements
6030	Local Purchasing
6040	Payment Procedures
6050	Purchasing
6051	Use of Credit Cards
6060	Fees, Payments, and Rentals
6070	Gifts and Bequests
6080	Sale of Equipment and Supplies
6090	Bonded Employees
6100	Inventories
6110	Mileage Reimbursement
6400	Administrative Staff
	6410 Superintendent's Contractual Provisions
	6420 Principal's Contractual Provisions
6600	Contractor Insurance Requirements

6000 FISCAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

It shall be the Policy of the Board to adhere to strict fiscal accountability procedures as outlined in Board Policies and Rules. The Board shall make every effort to secure goods and services from responsible merchants and vendors at a price and quality that will enable the District's staff to fulfill the educational goals of the District.

6010 INVESTMENT OF FUNDS

The investment of School District monies shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent, business manager and/or the District treasurer.

Any monies not immediately required for the purposes for which the monies were collected or received shall be invested as provided by current statute.

Posting Securities

All investment of District monies or any monies of its schools shall be secured by a pledge of direct federal obligations and direct guaranteed federal agency deposits in accordance with requirements of state law. Exceptions to the required posting of securities shall be only as provided by law.

6020 BIDS AND QUOTATIONS REQUIREMENTS

All purchases requiring competitive bids shall be made in accordance with current statutes.

6030 LOCAL PURCHASING

The purchasing agent shall make purchases from local vendors when the price, availability of the product and service are competitive with outside vendors for purchases not subject to the bidding law. The Board shall not grant preferential bid percentages to local contractors or business except as provided by statute.

6040 PAYMENT PROCEDURE

Payment of bills shall be considered by the Board at regular Board meetings upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designated representative.

Upon receipt of a request for payment by a District vendor, and upon receipt of all goods or satisfactory completion of all services from said vendor, the District will authorize payment to said vendor within 30 days and full payment within 45 days.

The Board may designate one or more employees to pay bills in advance of any Board meeting in order to avoid a penalty for late payment or to take advantage of any early payment discount.

6050 PURCHASING

The Superintendent or designated representative shall be the purchasing agent for the District.

6051 USE OF CREDIT CARDS

The District has three types of credit cards: general, store and fuel. A form will be maintained in the Central Office that lists the following:

- Name of the credit card.
- 2. Person issued the credit card.
- 3. Itemized record of purchases for each credit card.

Guideline and procedures for using District-issued credit cards include:

- 1. The person issued the credit card is the responsible party. If the card is checked out to another employee, the person originally issued the credit card remains responsible for the card and all purchase receipts. All receipts must be submitted to the district office within 5 business days of the purchase.
- 2. When employees check out cards, they must return the card and all receipts as soon as possible and not later than 2 business days after checkout.
- 3. Online purchases made using a district credit card require a printed invoice. This invoice must be delivered to the district office, attached to a requisition, as soon as possible and not later than 2 business days after the purchase.
- 4. Purchases made by the Superintendent will be overseen by the Clerk of the Board of Education.
- 5. The Clerk of the Board of Education will provide the Board an itemized list of all purchases made on each card at the regularly scheduled meeting.
- 6. Original receipts will be kept for the fiscal year.
- 7. The superintendent may revoke a staff member's privilege of credit card use if these guidelines are not followed.

6060 FEES, PAYMENTS AND RENTALS

Proceeds from fees for building or equipment use or rental will be credited to the appropriate fund.

6070 GIFTS AND BEQUESTS

Income derived from gifts and bequests will be credited to the appropriate fund.

6080 SALE OF EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES

Excess or unusable District-owned equipment and supplies will be disposed of at the discretion of the Board of Education and/or the Superintendent. The Superintendent will report intent to dispose of or sell excess or unusable equipment to the Board along with the procedure for liquidation of the equipment or supplies.

6090 BONDED EMPLOYEES

The Board of Education shall purchase a blanket or surety bond for school employees. The amount of the bond shall be prescribed by the Board and/or statute.

6100 INVENTORIES

An accounting will be made annually for all property, real and personal, owned by the District.

6110 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT

Mileage reimbursement shall be paid for trips that are made one mile or more outside the city limits of Leon.

All persons receiving mileage reimbursements shall be paid at the rate set for state employees and shall be adjusted when state rates are set.

6400 ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

6410 SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

All conditions of the Superintendent's contract shall be found in the contract document. This document shall be negotiated annually between the Board and Superintendent.

6420 PRINCIPALS' AND ADMINISTRATORS' CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

All conditions of the Principal's contract shall be found in the contract document. This document shall be negotiated annually between the Board and the Principal.

6600 CONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractors who perform work for or contract to perform work on any of the facilities, machinery or equipment of Bluestem USD 205, shall, prior to the commencement of any such work, have complied with the following:

- a. Hold a valid contractor's license issued by a Butler or Sedgwick County municipality.
- b. Maintain a policy of automobile insurance covering all vehicles utilized by the contractor and all employees and other drivers of those vehicles, with a combined single limit of no less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000).
- c. Maintain a policy of workers' compensation insurance covering all of the contractor's owners, employees and subcontractors, with the limits required by statute in Kansas or with respect to the owner(s) of the contracting business and

- other eligible persons, maintain valid elections to be excluded or waivers with respect to the applicability of such coverage.
- d. Maintain a policy of contractor's general liability insurance with a limit of no less than the greater of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000) or the maximum liability of the District under the Kansas Tort Claims Act, K.S.A. 65-6105, as amended.
- e. All such insurance policies shall be issued by carriers licensed to provide such coverage in the State of Kansas.
- f. Each such insurance policy shall name the Board of Education of Bluestem USD 205 as additional insured and shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the District.
- g. Provide to the Office of the Superintendent of Schools of the District a Certificate(s) of Insurance evidencing the required insurance coverage and setting forth the effective dates for each such coverage.

In addition, with respect to those projects subject to the bidding requirements of K.S.A. 72-6760 (\$20,000) as amended, or the public works bond requirements of K.S.A. 60-1111 (\$40,000), as amended, the District may, in its sole discretion, require the Contractor to have complied with the following:

- a. Provide a bid bond in such amount as the District shall determine.
- b. Provide a performance bond in such amount as the District shall determine.
- c. Provide builders risk insurance for the project in such amount as the District shall determine.
- d. Provide Contractor's general liability insurance with such higher limits of coverage as the District shall determine.

In the event of an emergency as determined by the District, in its sole discretion, the Superintendent of Schools may waive any one or more of the foregoing requirements.

OPERATION / SUPPORT SERVICES 7000 – 7999

7000	Food Service Program 7010 Closed Lunch 7020 Free or Reduced Lunch/Breakfast 7030 Milk Program
7100	Transportation
	7110 Activity Trips
	7120 Permitted Passengers
	7130 Payment of Mileage
	7140 Lease or Loan of School Vehicles
7200	Health Services
	7210 Dental/Visual/Hearing Screening
	7220 Student Illness and Prescribing of Drugs
	7230 Students/Employees with (AIDS) HHTLV – III Infection
	7235 Chronic Head Lice
	7240 Playground Supervision
	7250 HIPPA Policy
7300	Buildings and Grounds Management
	7310 Insurance
	7320 Safety & Security
	7330 Emergency Situations / Drills
7400	Printing and Duplicating

7000 FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM

The District will provide each student with the opportunity to participate in the School Lunch and Breakfast Program. Rules and regulations governing this activity will be developed by the Superintendent and those building Principals in whose building a school lunch/breakfast program is being operated. Such rules and regulations will be published in the Student Handbook following Board approval.

In accordance with federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, the District is prohibited from discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability. To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-9401 or call (202) 720-5964 (voice or TDD).

7010 CLOSED LUNCH

Students will remain at the school through the lunch period. Lunch will be eaten in the designated area according to the schedule established by each building Principal. Lunch may be purchased at the lunch program or lunch may be brought from home. Milk may be purchased to supplement lunches brought from home.

An emergency exception from the above regulations will be made only for specific instances in the same manner in which a student may be excused from a class.

7020 FREE OR REDUCED LUNCH/BREAKFAST

Free or reduced lunches and breakfasts are provided for students who qualify under District, State and Federal rules and regulations governing this program.

7030 MILK PROGRAM

The elementary school may maintain a milk program, with each student paying a nominal fee for one-half pint of milk daily. The fee will vary from year to year due to the price charged to the school.

7100 TRANSPORTATION

Bus transportation will be provided to and from school for those students who qualify. Transportation will be provided by the District for all extra-class activities. Students are prohibited from driving personal automobiles to District-sponsored activities held during the school day.

Students must observe the rules and regulations adopted by the Board governing student transportation. Students will also be subject to the school's behavior code while riding school buses.

All such rules shall be published at least once each year or copies given to students and parents at the beginning of the school year. Based on the authority granted by KSA 72-8302, the District will not provide transportation to students who are detained after school for violating behavior rules and regulations or for disobedience of an order of a teacher or administrator.

Bus drivers shall report any violation of said rules to the appropriate administrator, who shall take the necessary steps to discipline students according to Board Policy. As a disciplinary action for violation of Board rules, a student may be refused school bus transportation but be required to attend school.

7110 ACTIVITY TRIPS

School activity groups which schedule the bus must do so through their respective sponsors. An adequate number of teacher sponsors must accompany each bus load of students.

When activity groups are to be transported in the school bus, the following regulations shall apply:

- Arrangements for the bus for an activity should be done through the Principal of the building which has the activity group. The bus or buses must be filled to capacity before asking for any additional buses. This must also be approved through the Superintendent's Office.
- Absolutely NO SMOKING aboard the bus must be a regulation that is rigidly enforced. NO BEVERAGES of any kind are to be consumed aboard the bus.
- 3. The bus driver's chief responsibility on trips involving activity groups is in the care and operation of the vehicle, not in the realm of management of students.

7120 PERMITTED PASSENGERS

The school bus driver shall not allow anyone other than school personnel and students regularly assigned thereto to ride the bus unless a permit of a type and form approved by the building Principal has been issued. This shall not apply to law enforcement or emergency personnel who are passengers of a bus in an emergency situation.

7130 PAYMENT OF MILEAGE

Payment of mileage to parents in lieu of having students riding the bus may be made with the Superintendent's approval.

7140 LEASE OR LOAN OF SCHOOL VEHICLES

School buses and other school vehicles will not be loaned, leased or subcontracted to any person, groups of persons or organizations except as allowed by law subject to board approval. Buses used for these purposes may not leave the State of Kansas.

7200 HEALTH SERVICES

The Board shall promote and monitor a Local Wellness Program. The Program shall:

- Include goals for nutrition education, physical activity and other school-based activities designed to promote student wellness in a manner that the Board determines appropriate;
- Include nutrition guidelines for all foods available in each school during the school day; the objectives of the guidelines shall be to promote student health and to reduce childhood obesity;
- Assure that guidelines for reimbursable school meals shall not be less restrictive than regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of Agriculture, as those regulations and guidance apply to schools;
- Establish a plan for measuring implementation of the local Wellness Program, including designation of one or more District employees who shall be charged with operational responsibility for ensuring the Wellness Program is effectively enforced; and
- Involve parents, students, representatives of the school food authority, the school board, administrators and the public in the development of the School Wellness Program.

7210 DENTAL / VISUAL / HEARING SCREENING

All schools are required to provide free dental inspection annually for all children of the school, except those who hold a certificate from a legally qualified dentist showing that this examination has been made within three months last past.

The School Board shall provide basic hearing screening without charge to every student in its schools during the first year of admission and not less than once every three years thereafter. All tests shall be performed by a

person competent in the use of a calibrated audiometer and who has been designated by the School Board. The results of the test and, if necessary, the desirability of examination by a qualified physician shall be reported to the parents or guardians of such students.

The School Board shall provide basic vision screening without charge to every student in its schools not less than once each two years. All such tests shall be performed by a teacher or some other person designated by the School Board. The results of the test and, if necessary, the desirability of examination by a qualified physician or optometrist shall be reported to the parents or guardian of such students.

7220 STUDENT ILLNESS AND PRESCRIBING OF DRUGS

The District will comply with the current Statutes and Regulations as defined by the Legislature, Kansas State Department of Education and the Kansas Department of Health and Environment.

Please refer to the current Parent / Student Handbook for the school attended.

7230 STUDENTS/EMPLOYEES WITH (AIDS) HTLV - III INFECTION

Medical research indicates that AIDS/HTLV-III cannot be transmitted through casual physical contact. The school-aged child infected with AIDS/HTLV-III presents a negligible risk of transmission to his/her classmates or to other adult school personnel, and thus does not affect their health and safety. For the same reason, adult school personnel infected with AIDS/HTLV-III, under ordinary school circumstances, will not infect school children or co-workers. Therefore, both children and adult school personnel infected with AIDS/HTLV-III should, in most instances, continue to attend school and to participate fully in programs and activities offered by Bluestem USD 205.

Removal of a student or an adult employee infected with AIDS/HTLV-III from the school setting is normally not justified. However, guidelines will be established in Bluestem USD 205 for a case-by-case review process for any student or school employee known to have AIDS/HTLV-III. Infected students/employees should respect the individual's right to privacy. The number of personnel who are aware of an individual's condition should be kept to the minimum needed to assure proper care of the person.

I. Review Committee

The Superintendent of Schools will appoint a review committee. The committee will meet as needed to determine the appropriate school placement of children or employees infected with AIDS/HTLV-III. The members of the review committee will include a medical physician, student's primary teacher, student's/employee's representative of choice and building administrator. The building administrator will serve as the chairperson.

Responsibilities:

- a. The review committee will review all students/employees known to have the AIDS/HTLV-III infection. The school system and health department will immediately report known cases to each other, provided a written release to exchange information between the two agencies is obtained from the employee or parents of the students.
- b. The student's parent(s), guardian/employee must identify a physician who will be responsible for the care of the student/employee and who will monitor the student's/employee's medical and psychological condition.
- c. Prior to the review, the chairperson will obtain appropriate data from the student's/employee's designated physician, the student's parent(s) or guardian(s), employee and school, in a confidential manner. This will require written permission from the student's parent(s) or guardian(s) or school employees.
- d. The committee will meet to determine if the student/employee presents an increased risk of transmitting the AIDS/HTLV-III infection. If so, they will also recommend the appropriate restricted setting for the individual.
- e. The following items will be considered for all students:
 - Age
 - Behavior
 - Neurological and mental status
 - Physical condition
- f. The review committee will recommend a restricted setting for the student if he/she meet any of the following criteria:
 - 1. Lacks control of body secretions;
 - 2. Exhibits behavior problems which would increase the possibility of transmission such as biting;
 - 3. Has uncoverable, oozing skin lesions;
 - 4. Needs a restricted setting to protect him/her from the infectious diseases of others:
 - 5. Needs a restricted setting to protect him/her from the risk of physical or psychological harm in an unrestricted setting.

If none of the above conditions exist, the committee will recommend an unrestricted setting for the student.

The review committee will determine whether or not any school employee with the AIDS/HTLV-III infection poses a potential risk of transmission to other employees or students. If so, the review committee will recommend a restricted setting for the employee. If a risk does not exist, the review committee will recommend continued work in the employee's regular work place position.

- g. The review committee will keep written notes of its meetings. Recommendations will be made in writing to the Superintendent of Schools. It will be the responsibility of the Superintendent to see a final decision is reached regarding a restricted or unrestricted setting for the student/employee.
- h. During the review process, an infected student/employee may be excluded from school/work. Exclusion will be done at the Superintendent's discretion, after consultation with the review committee.
- i. If an infected student in Grade K through 12 is not permitted to attend classes or participate in school activities with other students, the District shall provide the student with an appropriate alternative education.
- j. If the employment of an infected employee is discontinued, the employee shall be entitled to use any available medical leave and receive any available medical disability benefits.
- k. All actions of the review committee will be subject to the approval or disapproval of the Board of Education.

II. Monitoring:

The student's/employee's Principal will be responsible for notifying the review committee of any changes in the student/employee which would require a reassessment of the educational setting.

The review chairperson will call the student's/employee's physician and Principal on a monthly basis to determine if there have been changes in the student's/employee's health status which have gone unreported. The chairperson will also maintain monthly contacts with the student/employee. This will include the parent(s) or guardian(s) in the case of the student.

If any changes in the health status of a student/employee with the AIDS/HTLV-III infection occur which may increase the risk of transmission, the chairperson will immediately schedule a meeting to discuss the situation. The student/employee may be excluded from school or work place at this time.

III. Outbreaks of Communicable Diseases:

If a communicable disease (e.g. measles or chicken pox) occurs in a school or classroom which could be threatening to an infected student/employee, the

infected student's parent(s) or guardian(s), or the employee, and the student's/employee's physician will be notified so the AIDS/HTLV-III infected individual can be excluded from the school during the outbreak. The student/employee will be readmitted to school/work following approval of the review committee in accordance with the AIDS policy.

7235 CHRONIC HEAD LICE

A student with active head lice will be excluded from school until appropriate treatment with an antiparasitic drug is completed. Prior to re-admittance to classes, the school nurse or other designated personnel will determine if the infestation was corrected by checking the student for active head lice. If the problem was not corrected the student will return home until active infestation is treated and cleared.

7240 PLAYGROUND SUPERVISION

The playground constitutes one of the best laboratories for the development of habits of good citizenship and tends to supplement the teaching of citizenship which has taken place in the classroom.

Principals and teachers have a responsibility and an obligation to provide for adequate supervision of playgrounds at all times. Safety education and the prevention of accidents should be given careful attention by the school staff.

Building Principals have the direct responsibility for the assignment of building and playground supervisory duties to the members of the immediate building staff.

Prompt reporting of accidents involving injuries to school students or staff members should be made to the Office of the Superintendent by the Principal of the building in which the mishap occurred.

7250 HIPAA POLICY

The district shall comply with all applicable Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) provisions ensuring the confidentiality of protected health information.

7300 BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS MANAGEMENT

All district buildings and property shall be maintained, cleaned and inspected on a regular basis. The superintendent shall develop a comprehensive program to ensure proper maintenance and cleaning of all district property.

7310 INSURANCE

All district owned property, real and personal, will be insured to cover losses from natural disasters, fire, vandalism and other casualties. The superintendent may work with an insurance agent of record or group-funded pool to develop adequate insurance programs covering the district's employees and property.

7320 SAFETY & SECURITY

District administrators and maintenance personnel will inspect buildings regularly to insure the safety of students and employees. District administrators and campus police will comprehensively assess student, staff and building security issues regularly and implement or recommend for implementation, security measures needed to assure security and safety.

7330 EMERGENCY SITUATIONS/DRILLS

Good common judgment and quick thinking are always required in order to successfully cope with emergencies. No list of procedures should be followed blindly. However, the District has developed a crisis plan manual to provide guidance to all staff members.

Principals and department heads should see that all staff members are provided with and have prompt access to a crisis manual.

Reports of the monthly fire drills and tornado drills are to be made directly to the State Fire Marshall by the Principals on report forms provided for this purpose.

7400 PRINTING AND DUPLICATING

Any copying, modification or distribution of copyrighted materials by district employees or students must be done with permission of the copyright holder or within the bounds of "fair use" as defined by Section 107 of the Copyright Act.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 8000 – 8999

8000	Public Information Program
8005	Use of School Facilities and Property by Outside Groups
8010	Student Use of School Facilities
8020	Equal Access Policy
8025	Family Night
8030	Tobacco Products in Public Schools
8040	Acceptance of Gifts and Money
8045	School-Business-Community Partnerships & Related Advertising & Signage
8050	Handling of Complaints
8060	Open Records
8070	School Site Councils
8080	School Visitors
8090	School Volunteers

8000 PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM

The Board shall keep the public informed about the school system's functions and operations through a newsletter, a web site and other media and communication tools.

8005 USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY BY OUTSIDE GROUPS

It is felt that since schools are such an essential part of each community, they should be made available to the people whenever possible. The following guidelines have been established:

- A. The requirements of the school program shall receive prior consideration in the assignment of facilities.
- B. School-related organizations shall be given priority over non-related organizations.
- C. Approved youth groups shall be given priority over adult organizations.
- D. All non-school organizations shall file an application for use of school facilities at least three days prior to such intended use with the Principal. Application forms will be prescribed by the Superintendent.
- E. It should be generally understood that school facilities are to be made available when possible and fees charged only when necessary.
- F. Requests for use of school equipment by individuals or outside organizations shall be submitted to the building principal. The principal may establish a deposit for use of school equipment before it is removed from the school grounds or other district property. The deposit will be paid to the principal and will be refunded when the equipment is returned in working order. Outside organizations or individuals in the community may use school equipment when the proper request form is completed and submitted to the building Principal at least three days before the equipment is to be used. If approval is granted, this would signify that the building administrator has checked the availability and condition of the piece of equipment and will know the condition when it was loaned. All equipment that is not in as good or better condition upon return will be the responsibility of the organization that requested the use.
- G. USD 205 will follow current KSHSAA guidelines for lending or leasing football helmets, shoulder pads or other protective equipment for use by students at contact football camps, clinics, all star games or any other football team or activity sponsored by non-school organizations, clubs or agencies.

8010 STUDENT USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES

Students are not to be permitted the use of school facilities unless a teacher is present and in charge at all times. Custodians shall not allow students to enter the building when school is not in session unless they are accompanied by a member of the faculty or unless they have had specific instructions from the building Principal. Teachers shall not give keys to students.

8020 EQUAL ACCESS POLICY

A student or group of students who wish to conduct a meeting on school premises before or after the instructional day shall file an application for permission for the meeting with the Principal of the school building at which the meeting is to be held. The application shall state:

- 1. The name and address of the student or students and an affirmation by the person preparing the application that the student(s) has/have voluntarily initiated the meeting.
- 2. A description of the type of meeting, statement of purpose, estimate of expected attendance and a copy of any material used to advertise the meeting.
- 3. If a non-school attendee is to be in attendance, his or her name and address must be furnished and the organization with whom he or she is affiliated, if any. If the meeting is a religious one, the non-school attendee shall furnish an affirmation that he/she is not directing, conducting, controlling or regularly attending the activity.
- 4. The name and address of faculty monitor and affirmation that the faculty member is not directing, conducting or controlling the meeting.

The Principal shall approve the meeting if the application is filled out and if he/she determines that:

- 1. The meeting is voluntarily and student initiated.
- 2. There is no sponsorship of the meeting by the school, the government or its agents or employees.
- 3. The meeting will not materially and substantially interfere with the orderly conduct of the school's educational activities.
- 4. Employees of the District are present at religious meetings in a non-participatory capacity.
- 5. Non-school persons are not directing, controlling or regularly attending the activity.
- 6. There is no school influence on the form or content of any prayer or religious activity during the meeting or activity.

- 7. No person will be required to participate in prayer or other religious activity during the meeting or activity.
- 8. No funds will be expended by the school for any such meeting beyond the incidental cost associated with providing meeting space.
- 9. No employee will be compelled to attend a meeting if the contents of the speech at the meeting are contrary to his/her beliefs.
- 10. All forms are completed and submitted one week (7 days) prior to the meeting time.
- 11. A copy of the application is filed in the Superintendent's Office.

8025 FAMILY NIGHT

In order that there be a minimum of conflict with community and family activites, the following limitations for scheduling school activities apply: Wednesday nights shall be kept free of school activities as much as possible. Practices, rehearsals, and other activities will end by 6:30 PM. School sponsored activities requiring student attendance, with the exception of high school graduation, will not be scheduled on Sundays. When exceptions to these limitations are necessary, the Superintendent must approve the exception.

8030 TOBACCO PRODUCTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Bluestem USD 205 district property is tobacco free. The use of tobacco products, in any form, is prohibited, at all times, in or on all district owned or leased personal and real property. This includes, but is not limited to, district buildings and grounds, athletic facilities, vehicles and parking lots.

8040 ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS AND MONEY

The Board of Education will consider the acceptance of gifts from the public. Any organization or individual wishing to make a gift to the School District must have the prior approval of the Board of Education. All gifts will be regarded as gifts to the School District.

The Board of Education encourages the community and administration to work hand-in-hand with the BASE to develop a long-range endowment fund for the District.

The Administration is directed to bestow public recognition of gifts to the School District provided the donor(s) do not direct otherwise.

Money collected or donated to a particular attendance center will be spent for that center and for that intended purpose.

8045 SCHOOL-BUSINESS-COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS & RELATED ADVERTISING & SIGNAGE

The temporary placement of a sign indicating the sponsor's name and/or logo, which are put in place for the duration of the sponsored program, event, tournament, production or activity may be allowed by district administration. The location, prominence and design of the sponsor's banner shall be tasteful and respectful of the cultural values of the community and the school.

Semi-permanent sign placement may be permitted, on a case-by-case basis, depending on the venue. Such placements however must be renewed on an annual basis and be based on a written agreement between the sponsor and the District, approved by the Board of Education.

Paid advertising and business or community organization sponsorships shall be permitted in school buildings, on grounds of the district or at school-sponsored events only with prior approval of the superintendent or designee. Advertising on school property, in school and district publications, and distribution or display of business sponsor materials shall be regulated by guidelines developed by the superintendent. The display area(s) for advertising in school facilities will require prior board approval.

All long-term signage and memorials are discouraged but may be authorized by the school board.

8050 HANDLING OF COMPLAINTS

Individuals or groups often confront a single Board member with issues which usually should be handled by the Administration. In those cases of apparent exception, it is suggested that the Board member withhold commitment and/or opinion until the matter has been presented to the whole School Board during a regular or special session.

In carrying out the policy for the handling of complaints, the Board will therefore observe the following procedure: Neither the Board as a whole or any individual member will entertain or consider communications or complaints from teachers, parents or patrons until they have first been referred to the Principal of the attendance center in which the complaint originates.

The teacher, parent or patron with a complaint shall be channeled through the proper chain of command. The building Principal shall be contacted first, and if the problem cannot be handled by the building Principal, he/she shall refer the problem to the Superintendent. If the Superintendent cannot satisfy the person, it will then be referred to the Board of Education in a special or regular meeting.

8060 OPEN RECORDS

In order to comply with KSA 75-4317, Bluestem USD 205 formally appoints the building administrators as custodians of the public records of their respective attendance centers. Further, the Board of Education appoints the Superintendent of

Schools as chief custodian of all school records and the custodian of the Board of Education records. The Bluestem USD 205 Freedom of Information Officer is the District Treasurer. Bluestem USD 205 will comply with any formal request for records within three business days of a request. District buildings will have business hours from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and will provide the requester with facilities for copying records that fall within the guidelines of the law. The Board of Education does require that any person or persons wishing to have access to District records fill out a simple request form which asks for name, address and a description of the records requested. The charge for reproducing or copying such records shall be established at \$.10 per copy. The District shall deny any requests that fall under the exemptions for public disclosure that are outlined in the statute and shall provide a written statement to the requester as to reasons for that denial.

8070 SCHOOL SITE COUNCILS

Site Councils

A site council shall be established in each building in the District.

Purpose

The purpose of the School Site Council is to advise the school on such matters as student learning, education programs, school improvement planning and accreditation issues. The Site Council also plays an advocacy role for the school regarding the same issues. Specifically, the purpose is to:

- a. Provide advice and counsel to the school in developing, implementing and evaluating school performance goals and objectives, and
- b. Provide ongoing support for the students and staff of the school.

School Site Councils

School Site Council Bylaws will be established by the Board and published annually in the Student / Parent Handbooks and District Website.

8080 SCHOOL VISITORS

The board encourages its patrons, parents and interested leaders and educators to visit the district facilities. Visits should be scheduled with the building principal and teacher in advance. All visitors are required to check in at the building office and will be under the jurisdiction of the building principal, who will be responsible for developing rules governing the presence of visitors in the building.

8090 SCHOOL VOLUNTEERS

All school volunteers work under the direction of the school staff and provide supportive services to them. Persons interested in volunteering time or services to the district should contact a building principal for assignment. School volunteers serving in the district without financial compensation are bound by the policies, rules

and regulations of the district and shall not be covered by workman's compensation. Kansas State High School Activity Association regulations prohibit volunteers from assisting with activities programs.